Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub-
Committee
Agenda

To: Councillor Karen Jewitt (Chair), Nina Degrads and Margaret Bird

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee which you are hereby invited to attend,
will be held Wednesday, 27 July 2022 at 10.30 am. This meeting will be held
remotely and members will be sent a link to attend the meeting.

KATHERINE KERSWELL Tariq Aniemeka-Bailey

Chief Executive 020 8726 6000 x 64109

London Borough of Croydon tarig.aniemeka-bailey@croydon.gov.uk
Bernard Weatherill House www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

8 Mint Walk, Croydon CRO 1EA Tuesday, 19 July 2022

If you would like to record the meeting, we ask that you read the guidance on the
recording of public meetings here before attending.

The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings.

If you require any assistance, please contact Tariqg Aniemeka-Bailey on 020 8726
6000 x 64109 as detailed above.

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

AGENDA

Appointment of Chair
To appoint a Chair for the duration of the meeting.

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the
Committee.

Disclosure of Interests

Members and co-opted Members of the Council are reminded that, in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory
provisions of the Localism Act, they are required to consider in advance
of each meeting whether they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
(DPI), an other registrable interest (ORI) or a non-registrable interest
(NRI) in relation to any matter on the agenda. If advice is needed,
Members should contact the Monitoring Officer in good time before the
meeting.

If any Member or co-opted Member of the Council identifies a DPI or
ORI which they have not already registered on the Council’s register of
interests or which requires updating, they should complete the
disclosure form which can be obtained from Democratic Services at any
time, copies of which will be available at the meeting for return to the
Monitoring Officer.

Members and co-opted Members are required to disclose any DPIs and
ORIs at the meeting.

e Where the matter relates to a DPI they may not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must not stay in the meeting
unless granted a dispensation.

e Where the matter relates to an ORI they may not vote on the
matter unless granted a dispensation.

e Where a Member or co-opted Member has an NRI which directly
relates to their financial interest or wellbeing, or that of a relative
or close associate, they must disclose the interest at the meeting,
may not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not stay in the meeting unless granted a dispensation.
Where a matter affects the NRI of a Member or co-opted
Member, section 9 of Appendix B of the Code of Conduct sets
out the test which must be applied by the Member to decide
whether disclosure is required.

The Chair will invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the
commencement of Agenda item 3, to be recorded in the minutes.



Urgent Business (if any)

To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered
as a matter of urgency.

LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application for a premises licence at 21-22
Central Parade, New Addington, CRO 0JB (Pages 5 - 52)

The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether to grant the
application for a premises licence at 21-22 Central Parade, New
Addington, CRO 0JB

LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application for a review of the premises
licence at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA (Pages 53 -
132)

The Sub — Committee is asked to consider the application for a review
of the premises licence at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA
under the provisions of Section 53C of the Licensing Act 2003 (“The
Act”) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 53D of the Act, a review
of the Interim Steps imposed.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is
proposed to exclude the press and public during the course of a
meeting: Pursuant to the provisions of regulation 14 paragraph (2) of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the licensing authority
may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it considers
that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. For the
purposes of paragraph (2), a party and any person assisting or
representing a party may be treated as a member of the public.”

PART B



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

REPORT TO: LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
27 July 2022
AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: LICENSING ACT 2003 — APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES
LICENCE

LEAD OFFICER: Corporate _Director, Sust_ainable Communities,

Regeneration & Economic Recovery

] Clir. Scott Roche
CABINET MEMBER: Streets & Environment
WARDS: New Addington South

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:

This report is specific to this application and has no implications on the
Council’s Corporate Policies.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

This application is being processed as part of normal duties carried out by the
Department with no additional costs involved.

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: N/A

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether to grant the application
for a premises licence at 21-22 Central Parade, New Addington, CRO 0JB.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Sub-Committee that an application
has been received for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 (“the
Act”). This application is the subject of representations, therefore a hearing is
required.

3. DETAIL

3.1 A Protocol for Licensing Hearings and a Procedure for Licensing Sub-
Committee Hearings has previously been agreed by the Licensing Committee
(minute A/24/05 refers). The protocol has been subsequently amended by the
licensing committee (minutes A/32/06, A/40/07 and A/07/12 refer and the
Protocol was last amended by the licensing committee on 30 September
2020, minute 15/20 refers).

Page 5



3.2

3.3

5.1

The applicant and the parties making representations have been notified of
the hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005 and Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the
Regulations”. Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to
the applicant and the parties making representations in accordance with “the
Regulations”.

Appendix A to this report provides details of this application.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to
the risks at 4.2 & 4.3. This application is being processed as part of normal
duties and therefore the work associated with it is contained within the
departmental budget.

The effect of the decision

The decision of the Sub-Committee may be subject to appeal and/or Judicial
Review

Risks
An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of

the application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard
to any award of costs against it.

Options

The options available are: to grant the application, to vary the application,
with or without further conditions, or to refuse the application.

Savings/ future efficiencies

None identified.

(Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance Place, Residents & Gateway)
COMMENTS OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL

The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director
of Law and Governance that the sub-committee must determine the
application, taking into account relevant representations, the Licensing Act
2003, the regulations made thereunder statutory guidance and the Council’s
own licensing policy.

(Approved by Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer).

Page 6



6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT

The Human Resources impact of supporting the Licensing Hearings will be
contained within the budgeted establishments of the Democratic and Legal
Services and Licensing Teams.

(Approved for and on behalf of HR by Jennifer Sankar, Head of HR
Sustainable Communities).

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all
applicants and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the
process is accessible to all groups within the community. In exercising
licensing functions, the Council is required to comply with Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010 which requires public bodies to have due regard to the need
to:

Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by the Act;

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it; and

Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.

For these purposes the protected characteristics are
age

disability

gender reassignment

marriage and civil partnership

pregnancy and maternity

race

religion or belief

sex

sexual orientation

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:

Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their
protected characteristics.

Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these
are different from the needs of other people.

Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an
improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders.

Page 7


https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#age
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#disability
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#reassignment
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#marriage
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#pregmat
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#race
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#rob
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#sex
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics#lgb

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

11.1

LICENSING OBJECTIVES IMPACT

The licensing objectives contained in the Act are:
the prevention of crime and disorder

public safety

the prevention of public nuisance and

the protection of children from harm.

Officers comments and relevant representations on the impact of the
application on these objectives appear in Appendix A to the application.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything
they do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a
public authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The
key elements of this include:

The right to a fair hearing;

The right to a public hearing;

The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal,
The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.

When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as
the Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet
the full requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing
Sub Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can
consider all aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing
of the facts).

So, while it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub
Committee as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it
is not. Further, the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of
Natural Justice and the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury
reasonable’.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS
Protocols agreed in relation to Licensing Hearings are within the Council’s

Constitution and will be accessible as part of the Council’s Publication
Scheme maintained under the Freedom of Information Act.

CONTACT OFFICER: Michael Goddard, Head of Environmental Health,

Trading Standards and Licensing, Sustainable
Communities Department ext. 61838

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Application Forms

Licensing Hearings and Protocol and Procedure

Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

1. The Application

1.1 This report concerns an application by Mr. Celal Kuccuk for a premises
licence at 21-22 Central Parade, New Addington, CRO 0JB.

1.2 The application seeks the following licensable activity, between the hours
shown —

The Sale by Retail of Alcohol (for consumption ‘Off the premises) —
Monday to Sunday 0800 hours until 2200 hours

1.3 The relevant pages of the application are attached at Appendix A1.

1.4 Would the sub committee please note that following discussions with the
Police Licensing Officer, the applicant has amended their application to have
the conditions attached at Appendix 2 placed on the licence if the application
is granted.

2 Promotion of Licensing Objectives

2.1 The applicant provides details under the Licensing Objectives heading in their
application of the steps they intend to take to meet the four licensing objectives.
These steps would in turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be
attached to the premises licence, if the application is granted.

3 Relevant representations

3.1 Representations have been received on this application. Copies are attached at
Appendix A3.

3.2 The applicant has been provided with a written copy of the representations
made.

4. Policy Considerations

4.1 Under the terms of the Act, the Council has published a Statement of Licensing
Policy. This is available on the Council website at www.croydon.gov.uk . Hard copies
are also available from the Council’'s Place Department and copies of the policy will
also be available at the licensing sub committee hearing. The following paragraphs
from the Statement are considered particularly relevant with regard to this
application.

4.8 The fundamental principles of the Act and its accompanying guidance are that
nothing in this ‘Statement of Policy’ will:

undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 Act for a variety of
permissions and have each application considered on its individual merits, or,

Page 11


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

override the right of any person to make representations on any application or seek
a review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so under the
2003 Act.

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

Parties should be aware that, for a representation to be considered relevant,
it must be one that is about the likely effect of the grant of a new
licence/certificate or variation of an existing licence/certificate on the
promotion of the four licensing objectives. Also, if the representation is made
by an ‘other person’, it will not be relevant if the licensing authority considers
it to be ‘vexatious or frivolous’, or in the case of a review, ‘repetitious’.

Applicants and those making relevant representations in respect of
applications or seeking a review of a licence or a certificate have the right of
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the decisions of the Council.

In considering all licence/certificate applications, the Council will take into
account the character of the surrounding area, the impact of the
licence/certificate on that area and the nature and character of the operation.

As part of any application for a premises licence/club premises certificate or a
variation to an existing licence/certificate, applicants are required to submit an
‘Operating Schedule’, which must include the steps proposed to promote the
Licensing Objectives set out in paragraph 2.2.

Part 5 of this Statement gives guidance to applicants on some of the matters
they may wish to consider when preparing their Operating Schedules.

Licensing is about permitting activities but also ensuring the responsible
management of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events
within the terms of the 2003 Act, and conditions are likely to be attached to
licences, certificates and permissions that will cover matters which are within
the control of individual licensees.

However, the Council acknowledges that it can only impose conditions where
relevant representations have been received on an application and that such
conditions must be considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. Where no relevant representations have been made, the
application will be granted by the licensing authority in terms consistent with
the applicants operating schedule.

When considering these conditions, the Council will primarily focus on the
direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises on members
of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area
concerned.

NEED and CUMULATIVE IMPACT

417

The Council will not take ‘need’ into account when considering an application,
as this concerns ‘commercial demand’ and is a matter for the planning process
and the market.

Page 12



4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

However, the Council recognises that a significant number and type of
licensed premises in a particular area may lead to problems of crime, disorder
and nuisance and notes that in accordance with the Statutory Guidance to the
Act, their cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a
proper matter for the Council to consider. For example, national analysis of
alcohol sales data (sales in the on and off trade) has shown a positive
association at local authority level between off-trade sales and alcohol-specific
hospital admissions.

Where the Council recognises that there is such a cumulative effect it will
consider adopting a specific Cumulative Impact Policy for that area, if this is
shown to be necessary. Reducing availability, affordability and attractiveness
are some of the most effective ways to reduce alcohol-harm and related crime.

In these circumstances, the Council may consider that the imposition of
conditions is unlikely to address the apparent problems and may consider the
adoption of a special policy whereby there will be a presumption that new
premises licence or club premises certificate applications, or applications to
materially vary a premises licence, will be refused. A material variation may
be, for example, an increase in permitted hours or to add a licensable activity
onto a premises licence.

Based on the Statutory Guidance to the Act, in deciding whether to adopt such
a Policy in an area, the Council will consider the following:

e local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types
of crime and crime hotspots

statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences

the density and number of current premises selling alcohol

Alcohol use and misuse in Croydon’s population

Claimants of benefits due to alcoholism

Alcohol specific hospital admissions for under 18’s

Ambulance incidents and dispatches

Alcohol related road traffic accidents

Statistics on alcohol related emergency attendances and hospital
admissions

Mortality

Complaints recorded by the local authority

Evidence from local councillors and

Evidence obtained through local consultation.

There are concerns about parts of the borough which experience high levels
of alcohol related crime and alcohol related hospital admissions and where it
is clear that the density of shops selling alcohol for consumption off the
premises is significantly higher than in other parts of the borough.

As a result, the Council has considered it appropriate to designate, the
following four areas within Croydon as being subject to a special Cumulative

Page 13



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

Impact Policy in respect of off licences and shops and supermarkets selling
alcohol off the premises:

i Along the Brighton Road; South End; High Street, George Street
corridor, from the Royal Oak Centre on Brighton Road, Purley to the
junction of George Street and Cherry Orchard Road in Central Croydon

i Along the London Road/Streatham High Road corridor, in 3 sections; from
the junction of London Road and Tamworth Road in West Croydon to the
j/w Canterbury Road; from the j/w Broughton Road to the j/\w Melrose
Avenue and; from the j/'w Northborough Road to the borough boundary
with London Borough of Lambeth

i Along the Brigstock Road and High Street, Thornton Heath corridor, from
the junction of Brigstock Road and London Road in Thornton Heath to the
junction of High Street, Thornton Heath and Whitehorse Lane

iv Along the length of Central Parade, New Addington

The effect of a Cumulative Impact Zone Policy for each of the areas listed
above is that where relevant representations are received on any new
applications for a premises licence to sell alcohol off the premises, or on a
material variation to an existing such premises licence there will be a
presumption under the special policy that the application will be refused. A
material variation would be, for example, an increase in permitted hours for
the sale of alcohol or to add the sale of alcohol off the premises as a licensable
activity to the premises licence.

The Cumulative Impact Policy is intended to be strict, and will only be
overridden in genuinely exceptional circumstances. However, the Licensing
Authority will not apply these policies inflexibly. It will always consider the
individual circumstances of each application; even where an application is
made for a proposal that is apparently contrary to policy.

It is not possible to give a full list of examples of when the council may treat
an application as an exception. However, in considering whether a particular
case is exceptional, the Licensing Authority will consider the reasons
underlying the policy.

The Licensing Authority will not consider a case to be exceptional merely on
the grounds that the premises have been or will be operated within the terms
of the conditions on the licence, or that are or will be generally well managed
because of the reputation or good character of the licence holder or operator.
This is expected in the conduct of all licensed premises. Moreover, licences
are for premises and can be easily transferred to others who intend to operate
within the scope of the licence and its conditions.

The Council will review the special policies regularly to see whether they have

had the effect intended and whether they are still needed or whether they need
expanding.

Page 14



4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

The Council will not use these policies solely:

e As the grounds for removing a licence when representations are
received about problems with existing licensed premises, or,

o To refuse modifications to a licence, except where the modifications are
directly relevant to the policy, for example where the application is for an
extension in permitted hours or to add a licensable activity.

The Council recognises though that where no relevant representations are
made in relation to an application in a cumulative impact area, the application
must be granted in terms consistent with the applicants operating schedule.

The Council recognises that the diversity of premises selling alcohol, serving
food and providing entertainment covers a wide range of contrasting styles
and characteristics and will have full regard to those differences and the
differing impact these will have on the local community.

Where an application is made for a new or transfer and variation of a licence,
in respect of premises that have closed and been unused and that closure
was to a relevant extent as a consequence of crime and disorder and/or
nuisance issues at the premises, the Council would expect the applicant to
make clear in their operating schedule how they will ensure the crime and
disorder and public nuisance objectives will be met, bearing in mind any
previous crime and disorder/nuisance concerns there may have been.

It therefore also recognises that, within the Cumulative Impact Policy areas, it
may be able to approve licences that are unlikely to add significantly to the
existing problems, and will consider the circumstances of each individual
application on its merits.

In addition to the cumulative impact zones listed above, the Council is aware
of concerns amongst responsible authorities and residents about the number
of shops licensed to sell alcohol for consumption off the premises in certain
other areas of the borough and the impact they may be having on crime and
disorder. It is not intended at this time to introduce cumulative impact zones in
these areas, however, they will be monitored and assessed regularly and
should concerns increase, consideration will given to formally identifying them
as cumulative impact zones. For the time being, those areas will be classed
as special stress areas and they are as follows:

. High Street & Portland Road, South Norwood
. Lower Addiscombe Road

The Council acknowledges that the licensing function cannot be used for the
general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond
the direct control of the licensee of any premises concerned and that apart
from the licensing function, there are a number of other measures available
for addressing issues of unruly behaviour that can occur away from licensed
premises.

Page 15



4.36

In recognising the importance of such measures, the Council will continue to
seek further improvements to those already achieved in respect of planning
controls and working in partnership with local businesses and transport
operators on a number of measures to create a safe and clean environment
in the following areas:

Provision of extensive CCTV and radio communication systems

Improvements to street lighting

Rubbish collection and street cleaning

Provision of better late night bus, tram, rail and taxi/minicab services

Provision of Police Officers/street and litter wardens

Designation of areas within the borough, as part of a Public Space

Protection Order, where alcohol may not be consumed publicly and

monitoring the possible need for future designations in other parts of the

borough*

¢ Working in partnership with Croydon Borough Police on law enforcement
issues relating to disorder and anti-social behaviour. These include the
use of powers to issue fixed penalty notices, prosecuting those selling
alcohol to people who are underage and/or drunk, confiscating alcohol
from adults and children in designated areas and instant closure of
licensed premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, or
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise from the premises

e Working in partnership with Licensees and expecting them to support

existing and future agreed measures set up to promote the strategic

objectives for crime and disorder reduction within the Borough

¢ Acknowledging the powers of the police or other responsible authorities,
or a local resident or business under the 2003 Act, to seek a review of
the licence or certificate

*Would existing licence/certificate holders and new applicants please note that a number of areas within the
borough of Croydon are to lie within Public Space Protection Orders (PSPQO’s) that may control the consumption
of alcohol in public areas. Please contact the Council’s licensing team if you wish to discuss how such orders may
affect licensed premises.

5.

5.1.1

51.2

LICENSING OBJECTIVES and OPERATING SCHEDULES

The following sections set out the Council’s Policy relating specifically to the
four Licensing Objectives:

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety

the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

In each section the Council defines its intended outcome and lists the factors
that may influence achieving that particular objective, but because of the wide
variety of premises and activities to which this Policy applies, the lists provided
are not exhaustive. Applicants will know their premises best and will be

Page 16



51.3

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

5.2.5

5.2.6

expected to address all aspects relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

Further, each section lists possible control measures to assist applicants, but
again these lists are not exhaustive. Also, many of the control measures
achieve more than one Objective but have not been listed under each Objective

and applicants do not need to mention a control measure more than once in
their Operating Schedule.

Crime and Disorder

Croydon Council is committed to reducing crime and disorder within the
Borough and creating an environment where people feel safe.

In addition to the requirements under the 2003 Act for the Council to promote
the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder, it also has a duty
under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably
can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough.

Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning
entertainment, alcohol and/or refreshment, can be a source of crime and
disorder problems.

The Council considers that the promotion of the Licensing Objective to prevent
crime and disorder also places a responsibility on licence holders to work in
partnership to achieve this Objective.

The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be
implemented and maintained so as to minimise or prevent crime and disorder
in and around the vicinity of their premises and events.

The Licensing Authority recommends that for certain events, a comprehensive
risk assessment is undertaken by premises licence applicants & holders to
ensure that crime and disorder and public safety matters are identified and
addressed. For larger public events, including those in open spaces and for
premises that wish to stage promotions or events, the Licensing Authority
recommends that licence applicants and holders address Risk Assessment

and post event debrief processes in their application operating schedule/event

planning.

Page 17



5.2.7

5.2.8

Applicants and premises licence holders may wish to engage the services of
suitably trained individuals or companies to assist them in this risk assessment
process. In addition, they may seek guidance and advice from the Licensing
Authority or the Metropolitan Police regarding the process, although the
responsibility for undertaking the risk assessment remains with the
Applicant/Premises License holder as neither body is able to actually
undertake such risk assessments for applicants/licence holders. Applicants
and premises licence holders are also reminded that the Licensing Authority
is not able to recommend the services of a particular individual or company
for this purpose.

Drugs, violence, anti social behaviour and theft of customers property are
examples of crime and disorder issues which may be addressed by the
following examples of recommended management practice being included in
operating schedules, having due regard to the type of premises and/or
activities:

o effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises,
including associated open areas, appropriate storage of alcohol,
discouraging loitering/consuming alcohol outside the premises, ensuring
opening hours are adhered to

e participation in responsible management schemes such as the ‘Best Bar
None’ accreditation/award scheme

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of crime and disorder

e adoption of existing and future best practice guidance (e.g. Safer
Clubbing, the National Alcohol Harm Reduction Toolkit and other
recognised codes of practice including those relating to drinks’
promotions, i.e. The Point of Sale Promotions published by the British
Beer and Pub Association and cheap drinks deals/Happy Hours)

e acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ documentation, as recognised by
the Council in consultation with the Police

¢ maintaining appropriate signage and a refusals log

e employment of sufficient SIA licensed door staff, i.e. within nationally
accepted standards

e provision of toughened or plastic glasses

e provision of secure deposit boxes for confiscated items as recognised by
the Council in conjunction with the Police

e provision of litter bins and security measures, such as lighting outside
premises

e Other schemes including only purchasing alcohol from authorised
wholesalers, not selling certain alcohol types/strengths (e.g. high
strength beers/ciders or single cans above 6% ABV), restricting sales on
certain alcohol types (e.g. miniature spirits), allowing a ‘track and trace’
identifier on products so Police/Trading Standards can identify which off-
licence seized alcohol is from, signing up to local responsible retailer
schemes

e Provision of closed circuit television, with cameras covering relevant
internal and external areas (including beer gardens) and entrances/exits
to premises

Page 18



5.2.9

5.2.10

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

534

5.3.5

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from the Council Licensing Team and Croydon
Police Licensing and/or Crime Prevention Officers, as well as taking into
account, as appropriate, local planning and transport policies, and, tourism,
cultural and crime prevention strategies.

Where relevant representations have been made, the Council will consider
attaching conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent crime
and disorder both inside and immediately outside the premises.

Public Safety

The Council is committed to ensuring that the safety of any person visiting or
working in licensed premises is not compromised. To this end, applicants will
be expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and
maintained to ensure public safety, relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

The 2003 Act covers a wide range of premises that require licensing,
including, cinemas, concert halls, theatres, nightclubs, public houses, off
licences, cafés/restaurants, fast food outlets/takeaways and sometimes open
spaces.

Each of these types of premises present a mixture of different risks, with many
common to most premises and others unique to specific operations. These
will range from fire safety, including fire precautions and means of escape
arrangements in all types of premises, to the use of scenery and pyrotechnics
in theatres and special lighting effects in night clubs.

It is essential that premises are constructed or adapted and operated so as to
acknowledge and safeguard occupants against these risks.

The following examples of influencing factors are given to assist applicants
when addressing the issue of public safety during the preparation of their
Operating Schedule:

e the number of people attending the premises

e the condition, design and layout of the premises, including the means of
escape in case of fire

¢ the nature of the activities to be provided, in particular the sale of alcohol
and including whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent
nature

e the hours of operation and hours of opening if different

e customer profile (i.e. age, mobility)

Page 19



e the use of special effects such as strobe lighting, lasers, pyrotechnics,
smoke machines, foam machines etc.

5.3.6 Public safety issues may be addressed by the following examples of

5.3.8

5.3.9

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

54.3

recommended management practice being included in operating schedules,
having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

o effective and responsible management of premises

e provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to
secure the safety of everyone attending the premises or event, i.e.
number of door supervisors within nationally accepted standards (and
having SIA accreditation where necessary)

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the safety of everyone attending the premises or
event

e suitable customer-care policies for assisting lone customers taken ill or
injured etc. at the premises

e provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

e provision of toughened or plastic glasses

implementation of crowd management measures
regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures, appliances,
systems etc. pertinent to safety codes and standards

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Health and Safety Officers
and the London Fire Brigade.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to
promote public safety.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Council recognises the need to protect the amenities of people living,
visiting and working in the vicinity of licensed premises, whilst balancing the
rights of businesses to develop.

Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early
hours of the morning, can give rise to a range of public nuisances which may
impact adversely on local communities.

These concerns mainly relate to noise and disturbance, light pollution, noxious

smells, litter and anti-social behaviour and due regard will be taken on the
impact these may have.

Page 20



LICENSING HOURS

544

5.4.5

5.4.6

54.7

54.8

5.4.9

The Council will generally deal with the issue of licensing hours having due
regard to the individual merits of each application, considering the potential
for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of the
business and examining any steps that might reduce the risk of nuisance.

The Council recognises that longer licensing hours for the sale of alcohol will
avoid concentrations of people leaving premises at the same time, which is
necessary to reduce the potential for friction at late night fast food outlets, taxi
ranks/minicab offices and other sources of transport that can lead to disorder
and disturbance.

The Council will not set fixed trading hours within designated areas (“zoning”)
as it recognises this could lead to significant movements of people across
boundaries at particular times seeking premises opening later and would lead
to the peaks of disorder and disturbance the Council is trying to avoid.
Additionally, this would seemingly treat residents in one area less favourably
than those in another.

However, although the Council will treat each case on its individual merits,
generally it will not grant permission for licensable activities beyond 2330
hours on Sundays to Thursdays and Midnight on Fridays and Saturdays in
respect of public houses situated in areas having denser residential
accommodation. The Council would expect good reasons to be given to
support any application for extensions beyond these hours, including
addressing possible disturbance to residents and local parking. Additionally,
in these areas, consideration will be given to imposing stricter conditions in
respect of noise control.

SHOPS, STORES AND SUPERMARKETS

The Council acknowledges that the Guidance issued under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 states that shops, stores and supermarkets should
normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises
at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good
reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours.

However, there is local concern about crime and disorder associated with
shops licensed to sell alcohol off the premises. Accordingly, while the Council
will treat each case on its individual merits there will be a presumption that
permitted hours for the sale of alcohol will be restricted to between 8am and
11.30pm on Sunday to Thursday and 8am to midnight on Friday and Saturday
in respect of shops in residential areas or within one of the four relevant
Cumulative Impact Zones where representations are made by the police
and/or local residents and where premises are shown to be a focus of crime,
disorder or nuisance. Applications to vary the permitted hours for the sale of
alcohol off the premises within the above hours shall similarly be treated on
their merits

Page 21



PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE - GENERALLY

5.4.10 The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that they have identified satisfactory measures and will implement and
maintain these so as to prevent public nuisance, having due regard to the
style, characteristics and activities of their particular premises and events and
of the locality.

5.4.11 The following examples of influencing factors are given to assist applicants
when addressing the issue of the prevention of public nuisance during the
preparation of their Operating Schedule:

the location of the premises and proximity to residential or other noise
sensitive premises

effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises
and associated open areas

the hours of opening

the nature of the activities to be provided and their location within the
premises, the customer profile, whether the activities are temporary or
permanent and whether they are to be held inside or outside

the design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of
noise limiting features

the number of people attending the premises

the availability of public transport

a ‘wind down’ period between the end of the licensable activities and the
closure of the premises

a ‘last admission time’ policy

5.4.12 Public nuisance issues may be addressed by the following examples of
recommended management practice being included in operating schedules,
having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises,
including any outside areas

appropriate instruction, training and supervision of staff to prevent public
nuisance

adoption of current best practice guidance (i.e. Good Practice Guide on
the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs produced by the Institute of
Acoustics), including designing shop fronts so as to limit noise nuisance
from premises, i.e. from opening windows or continental-style concertina
doors

control of opening hours for all or part (i.e. garden areas) of the premises
— including other times when deliveries take place/rubbish and bottles
are binned — and the operation of generating plant and equipment
installation of acoustic insulation, suitably controlled, sited and silenced
ventilation or air conditioning systems and sound insulation and limiting
devices

managing people, including staff and traffic, arriving and leaving the
premises, including patrolling entrance queues

managing the departure of customers

Page 22



5.4.13

5.4.14

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

5.5.4

e liaising with transport providers

e siting and operation of necessary external lighting, including security
lighting, with the possible nuisance to nearby properties

e suitable arrangements for collection and disposal of litter, including
bottles, so as to minimise disturbance to nearby properties

e no flyposting of events/careful distribution of flyers, including by
promoters

o effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases, and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules applicants are
recommended to seek advice from Council Pollution Enforcement Officers.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to
prevent public nuisance.

Protection of Children from Harm
ACCESS TO LICENSED PREMISES

The wide range of premises that require licensing means that children can be
expected to visit many of these, often on their own, to buy food and/or for
entertainment.

Although the 2003 Act details certain age and/or time limitations on the
admission of accompanied or unaccompanied children to certain types of
licensed premises, the Council recognises that additional limitations may have
to be considered where it appears necessary to protect them from physical,
moral or psychological harm.

The Council will consider the merits of each application before deciding
whether to impose conditions limiting the access of children to individual
premises.

While no policy can anticipate every situation, the following are examples of
premises that will raise concern:

e where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature is commonly
provided;

e where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage
drinking;

e with a known association with drug taking or dealing;

e where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not,
for example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming
machines); and

Page 23



5.5.5

5.5.6

5.5.8

5.5.13

5.5.14

e where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the
exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises.

When dealing with a licence application where limiting the access of children
is considered necessary, the Council may consider any of the following
options, in combination where appropriate:

¢ limitations on the hours when children may be present;

¢ limitations on the exclusion of the presence of children under certain
ages when particular specified activities are taking place;

¢ limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given
access;

e age limitations (below 18);

e requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a
combination of requirements which provide that children under a
particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and

o full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable
activities are taking place.

The Council will not impose conditions on licences or certificates requiring that
children be admitted to any premises and, where no limitation is imposed, this
will be left to the discretion of the individual licensee. However, where
applicants volunteer prohibitions and limitations in their operating schedules
and no relevant representations have been made to the Council, these will
become conditions attached to the licence/certificate conditions and will be
enforceable as such.

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY

The Council recognises the Croydon Children’s Safeguarding Board and any
successor groups to be the ‘responsible authority’ competent to advise on
matters relating to the ‘protection of children from harm’, and to whom copies
of applications should be sent.

CHILDREN IN LICENSED PREMISES - GENERALLY

The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be
implemented and maintained to protect children from harm, having due regard
to the style, characteristics and activities of their particular premises and/or
events.

Whilst children may be adequately protected from harm by the action taken to
protect adults, they may also need special consideration and no policy can
anticipate every situation. Applicants should consider the following influencing
factors, for which there is the potential for children to be exposed, when
addressing the issue of protecting children from harm during the preparation
of their Operating Schedule:

e drugs, drug taking or drug dealing
e gambling

Page 24



5.5.15

5.5.16

5.5.17

5.5.18

6.1

activities of an adult or sexual nature

incidents of violence or disorder

environmental pollution such as noise or smoke
special hazards such as falls from heights
opportunities to purchase, acquire or consume alcohol

Note: A number of these factors are listed in more details in paragraph 5.5.6,
but as this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases, and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Protection of children from harm issues may be addressed by the following
examples of recommended management practice being included in operating
schedules, having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

o effective and responsible management of premises

e provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to
secure the protection of children, including child performers, from harm

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the protection of children from harm

e adoption of best practice guidance (Public Places Charter)

¢ limitations on the hours when children may be present in all or parts of
the premises

¢ limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place

e imposition of requirement for children to be accompanied by an adult

e appropriate instruction and training for counter staff in the prevention of
underage sales, including acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’
identification, such as a photo card driving licence, a passport, a citizens
card, a validate card or a scheme which carries the PASS hologram logo
and keeping a ‘refusal’ book.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from Council Licensing and Child Protection
Officers.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and certificates to
protect children from harm.

While the Council expects Licence holders to comply with the law, the 2003
Act details a number of specific offences designed to protect children in
licensed premises and the Council will work closely with the police to ensure
the appropriate enforcement of the law, especially relating to the underage
sale and supply of alcohol to children.

INTEGRATING STRATEGIES and AVOIDING DUPLICATION
There are many stakeholders in the leisure industry covering a wide range of

disciplines and although their strategies are not always directly related to the
promotion of the licensing objectives, they often indirectly impact upon them.

Page 25



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

The Council therefore acknowledges the importance of co-ordinating and
integrating these policies, strategies and initiatives and will maintain multi-
disciplinary working groups to ensure its licensing policy integrates with local
crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism, race equality schemes and
cultural strategies, as well as any other plans relating to the management of
the town centre and the night-time economy.

CRIME PREVENTION

Conditions attached to Licences and Certificates will, so far as possible, reflect
local crime prevention strategies. Examples of such conditions can be found
in the Pool of Conditions relating to prevention of crime and disorder contained
in the Statutory Guidance to the Act.

CULTURAL STRATEGIES

The Council will make arrangements to monitor the impact of licensing on
regulated entertainment, particularly live music, ensuring that only necessary,
proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions impose any restrictions on
such events.

Where there is any indication that such events are being deterred by licensing
requirements, the statement of licensing policy will be examined to see if the
situation might be reversed.

PLANNING AND BUILDING CONTROL

The Council recognises that there should be a clear separation of the
planning, building control and licensing regimes in order to avoid duplication
and inefficiency.

Licensing applications will not be a re-run of the planning application and will
not cut across decisions made by the planning committee or permissions
granted on appeal.

The Council will however expect applications for premises licences or for a
variation to an existing premises licence at permanent commercial premises
to be from businesses having the relevant planning consent for the property
concerned. In addition, persons submitting temporary event notices should
ensure the premises in question has the requisite planning consent for the
proposed activities and hours of operation. Where this is not the case,
applicants will be expected to show good reason why the premises do not
have planning permission.

The Croydon Local Plan sets out the criteria that will be used to assess
planning applications for any changes of use that require planning permission.
Some changes of use do not require planning permission but an application
for prior approval may be required to ascertain whether there are matters
related to the change of use that do require planning permission. Applicants
should contact the Council's Development Management service at

Page 26



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

9.1

development.management@croydon.gov.uk with any enquiries related to
planning applications or the prior approval process.

Any application for planning permission will be expected to take into account
the impact of noise and fumes (and other forms of potential nuisance) on
neighbouring premises and to provide details of any mitigating measures, as
applicable.

The Council will ensure that if requested, reports will be sent from the licensing
committee to the planning committee advising them of the situation regarding
licensed premises in Croydon, including the general impact of alcohol related
crime and disorder, to assist them in their decision-making.

ADVANCING EQUALITY

The Council recognises its legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a
characteristic and those who don't.

The Council will assess and consult on the likely impact and monitor for any
adverse impact on the advancement of equality which may arise as a result of
this Policy Document and will publish the results.

DUPLICATION

The Council will, so far as possible, avoid duplication with other legislation and
regulatory regimes that already place obligations on employees and
operators, e.g. the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Environmental
Protection Act 1990, the Regulatory Reform Fire Safety Order 2005 and the
Equality Act 2010 in respect of accessibility for disabled people.

Conditions relating to public safety will only be attached to premises licences
and club premises certificates where considered necessary for the promotion
of that licensing objective and not covered by any other legislation and where
regulations do not cover the unique circumstances of certain licensable
activities in specific premises.

The Council acknowledges that bingo clubs are dealt with under the Gambling
Act 2005 and will have due regard to the relevant advice regarding duplicating
licence conditions which has been given under both this legislation and the
2003 Act when dealing with applications relating to alcohol, regulated
entertainment or late night refreshment under the 2003 Act.

STANDARDISED CONDITIONS
Where Conditions are properly attached to licences or certificates they will be

tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the particular premises
and events concerned.

Page 27


mailto:development.management@croydon.gov.uk

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

ENFORCEMENT

It is essential that licensed premises are maintained and operated so as to
ensure the continued promotion of the licensing objectives and compliance
with the specific requirements of the 2003 Act and it is the responsibility of
premises licence holders and designated premises supervisors (where
applicable) to ensure this happens and that regulatory compliance is
maintained. The Council and its partners will make arrangements to monitor
premises and take appropriate enforcement action to ensure this but
enforcement action should be considered to be the last resort and such
intervention should not be necessary where premises are operated &
managed effectively.

Each of the Responsible Authorities under the Act may make representations
on an application or seek a review of a premises licence/club premises
certificate, based on concerns around any of the licensing objectives. That
said, it is anticipated that specific responsible authorities will take a central
advisory & enforcement role, as necessary, with regard to relevant licensing
objectives, for example —

e Prevention of crime and disorder — Police

e Prevention of Public Nuisance — Council Environmental Health
(Pollution) Team and the Planning Department

e Public Safety — Council Food & Safety Team or HSE (as applicable) and
the LFB

e Protection of Children from Harm — Croydon Children’s Safeguarding
Board, Police and the Trading Standards Team

Under the London Borough of Croydon Licensing Act 2003 Enforcement
Protocol, originally approved by the Council’'s substantive Licensing
Committee on 21 June 2006, using the principles of risk assessment, the
Council will work closely with the responsible authorities in enforcing licensing
law and inspecting licensed premises. This should ensure that resources are
more effectively concentrated on problem and high risk premises. This
Protocol shall be reviewed, through a separate process to this policy review in
the coming months and an updated version shall be available from the Council
Licensing Team and posted on the Council’s website.

The Council will carry out its regulatory functions in accordance with good
enforcement practice and particular regard will be had to fundamental
principles. In that regard, Enforcement shall be:

Targeted
Consistent
Transparent
Proportionate
Necessary

Page 28



Any enforcement activity shall be undertaken in a fair, open and consistent
manner in conformity with the above principles.

The Home Office has produced Statutory Guidance under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003. The following paragraphs from the Guidance are re produced
below to assist the sub committee —

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is
required under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the
applicant with copies of the relevant representations that have been made.

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing
authority may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their
personal details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-
founded fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on
this basis, they may wish to consider alternative approaches.

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible
authority with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being
undermined so that the responsible authority can make representations if
appropriate and justified.

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s
personal details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name
or general location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be
considered where the circumstances justify such action.

Imposed Conditions

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has
been engaged following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a
result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is
appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives.

4.2 All relevant parties have been made aware of the date, time and location of
the Sub Committee meeting.

4.3 An ordnance survey extract map of the area with the application premises
at the centre is attached at Appendix A4.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



ayl

CROYDON | Srovden

COUN CI L Licensing Act 2003

Application for a premises licence

For help contact
licensing@croydon.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8760 5466

www.croydon.gov.uk

* required information

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference

Not Currently In Use

Your reference

CEO Supermarket

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

& Yes C No
Applicant Details
* First name IMr Celal
* Family name lKuccuk
* E-mail il Essttemynltondy

Main telephone number m

Other telephone number

[ Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

C Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

(¢ Applying as an individual

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. it
is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for,

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Page 31



A\

Continued from previous page...

Address

* Building number or name
* Street

District

* City or town

County or administrative area L

s |

IUnited Kingdom

* Postcode

* Country

Agent Details

* First name

* Family name

* E-mail

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

(¢ Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

&

I

(DR

S Y 1 1 O

IMrs Aysen

lipek Kilic

licensing@narts.org.uk

(" Aprivate individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

Registration number

Business name

¢ Yes C No

10041572

Narts Food and Leisure Limited

VAT number -

Legal status

Your position in the business

Home country

Private Limited Company

Licensing Consultant

United Kingdom

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name,

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Page 32




Al

Continued from previous page...

Agent Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.
Building number or name INARTS ‘
Street ‘
District [ ‘
City or town |London ’
|

County or administrative area I

Postcode m

Country IUnited Kingdom l

Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
(¢ Address C  OS map reference C Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name ICEO Supermarket |
Street |21 -22 Central Parade |
District I |
City or town ]Croydon {

|

County or administrative area |

Postcode |CRO 0JB
Country |United Kingdom I
Further Details

Telephone number

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£) |58,000

Page 33




Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

< Anindividual or individuals

O

A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act

O O0o0o0OoO0Oo0ooao

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

[ The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following
| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves

the use of the premises for licensable activities
[1 1'am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

O

Section 4 of 21

INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?

 Yes C No
First name IMr Celal
Family name |Kuccuk

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

@ Yes C No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Page 34




AN

Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address

Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

@ Yes " No

Building number or name b

Street lm
District I
City or town |m

County or administrative area [

s |

Postcode

Country IUnited Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?

@ Yes C No

E-mail atesnerusEs

Telephone number

|eweaznsaey

Other telephone number

* Date of birth |0|/|@|/|m|
dd mm yyyy
* Nationality [British

Right to work share code I

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK

Right to work share code if not submitting
scanned documents

I Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the
premises licence to start?

10|/ |o7] /] 2022 |

dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period, | | / | I / l |
when doyouwantittoend 4

mm yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

Page 35




A

Continued from previous page...

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Supermarket, offlicence, grocery store, bakery etc. please see enclosed plans. Ground floor will be used as supermarket,
basement will only be used as a storage and production area.

If 5,000 or more people are

expected to attend the

premises at any one time, |—_—|
state the number expected to

attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
C Yes ¢ No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
C Yes ¢ No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

C Yes ¢ No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

C Yes ¢ No

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?

C Yes (¢ No

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Page 36




Continued from previous page...

Will you be providing recorded music?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

C Yes ¢ No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

C Yes

D)

No

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?
C Yes (¢ No

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

¢ Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

ML Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only gi've detailsforthc-:* days
N B e
TUESDAY
Start End
Start l:l End ‘:]
WEDNESDAY
Start End
Start l:, End |:|
THURSDAY
Start End
Start I:I End |—_——]

Page 37




Al

Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY
SATURDAY
SUNDAY
st [ ] md [

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

C Onthe premises (¢ Offthepremises ( Both

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N/A

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N/A

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor

Name
First name [Mr Celal
Family name lKuccuk |
Date of birth IOI/[.|/|”|
dd mm yyyy

Page 38




Al

Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name  [@ |
Street Im |
District [ |
City or town o) |
County or administrative area | ]
Postcode |y l

Country |United Kingdom [

Personal Licence number

(if known) [0081 06 \

Issuing licensing authority

(if known) |L. B. of Barking and Dagenham |

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

C Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to this application

Reference number for consent if the consent form is already submitted, ask

form (if known) the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its ‘system reference’ or 'your
reference'.

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

N/A

Section 17 of 21

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY
OND Give timings in 24 hour clock.

Start End |22:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start :l End l:___l to be used for the activity.

Page 39




Al

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY

Start l:l End l:l
WEDNESDAY
THURSDAY
FRIDAY

st [ ] end [ ]
SATURDAY

Start End
SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

N/A

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

N/A

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

Page 40




Al

Continued from previous page...

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Please see enclosed cover letter regarding to this application,

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

1) The dps, a personal licence holder or trained member of staff nominated in writing by the dps shall be on duty at all times
the premises are open to the public.

2) a) A cctv system covering the interior & exterior of the premises will be installed to current metropolitan police / Home
office standards and shall be kept operational at all times the premises are open to the public.

b) It shall be capable of taking a head & shoulders shot of persons entering the premises, of recording images to an
evidential standard in any light and be capable of storing images for a minimum of 31 days.

c) All staff who may work front of house shall be trained to operate the cctv system and download images.

d) At least one member of staff trained to operate the cctv system & download images shall be on duty at all times the
premises are open to the public. Footage shall be shown to the police and screenshots provided to them on request. Copies
of downloaded images shall be provided to the police on a usb stick, cd or other acceptable means as soon as possible and
in any case within 24 hours of the request

3) challenge 25 shall be operated as the proof of age policy.

4) An incident book shall be kept at the premises, and made available to the police or authorised council officers, which will
record the following:

A) All crimes reported,

B) Lost property,

Q) All ejections of customers,

D) Any complaints received,

E) Any incidents of disorder,

F) Any seizure of drugs or offensive weapons,

G) Any faults in the ccty,

H) Any refusal in the sale of alcohol.

1) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

5) Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale (as appropriate) advising customers:

A) That cctv & challenge 25 are in operation;

B) Advising customers of the provisions of the licensing act regarding underage & proxy sales;

C) Of the permitted hours for licensable activities & the opening times of the premises;

D) Not to drink in the street;

E) To respect residents, leave quietly, not to loiter outside the premises or in the vicinity and to dispose of litter legally.

6) There shall be a minimum of three personal licence holders present at the premises at all times.

7) Till Prompt system will be maintained for age restricted products.

8) No more than 10% of the shop floor shall be given over to the sale of alcohol.

9) All alcoholic drinks which are displayed for sale shall be in sight of the till.

10) All spirits shall be kept behind the counter.

11) There shall be no advertisements for alcohol in the shop window.

12) There shall be no display boards or other advertising for alcohol showing on the shop floor.

¢) Public safety

A fire risk assessment and emergency plan will be prepared and regularly reviewed. All staff will receive appropriate fire
safety training and refresher training.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Page 41




A

Continued from previous page...

1) The front of the premises shall be kept tidy at all times and be swept at close.

2) Relevant notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale (as appropriate)

3) No deliveries will be received or rubbish removed from the premises between 22.00 & 07.00.

4) Any music played will only be played at background level.

5) An incident book shall be kept at the premises and made available to the police or authorised council officers —see box b
condition 5 for full details of the information to be recorded.

6) A phone number for the premises shall be made available if required upon request to the police, any other responsible
authority or any local resident to express any concerns caused by the operation of the premises. Any complaints and the
outcome will be recorded in the incident book.

e) The protection of children from harm

1) Challenge 25 shall be operated as the proof of age policy and only a valid passport, photo driving licence, hm forces
photographic id card or proof of age card with the pass logo or hologram on it may be accepted as proof of age.

2) All refusals of the sale of alcohol shall be recorded in the refusals section of the incident book. The incident book shall be
kept and produced to police & authorised council officers on request —see section b condition 5 for full details.

3) relevant notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale as appropriate- see section B
condition 6 for full details.

4) All staff who work front of house will be trained for their role on induction and be given refresher training every six
months. Written training records will be kept for each staff member and be produced to police & authorised council officers
on request. Training will include identifying persons Under 25, making a challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it,
making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict & responsible alcohol retailing.

5) The premises licence holder to employ an external agency, to be approved by Croydon Trading Standards, to conduct
test purchases on a quarterly basis, with the results of the test purchases to be sent directly to Croydon Trading Standards
and Croydon Police Licensing team.

6) The premises licence holder to employ an external agency, to conduct training for all new staff and refresher trainingon a
six-monthly basis with the training records shall be electronically available to Croydon Trading Standards and Croydon
Police Licensing team at all times.

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 42




Ay

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

. does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
o is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK
. An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the

holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copyl.

. An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national

of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
. A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

° A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

° A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
° A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

° A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

. A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 43




18

Continued from previous page...

o A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

° A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

° A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

° A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

) A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

o Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

° Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

° evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,
° evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member - e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
° evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, coliege or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an 51, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder's photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 44




Al

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 45




a3

R a =g
1) LNOAVT Y00T4 wy | zzmom
e 001} 9jEdS £V
oN Bupresg oN qor
W wy W Wz W o
LNOAVT NV'1d 80014 ANNOYD r0 089 uopuo
‘ony Bumaig opeled jenua) zz -1e s
$¥0L03130 1vaH M =X |
13¥NvIg 3ald 8

$HOL03L3A IHOWS Q
Svauv 3i@vsNzon | ——
l JONINOD ALDD A _
3 4 &= .|
YYIWYD ALINOIS q
31N0Y 3dvISI ANVYWINd G
LHOIT/NDIS 11X3 3l =

SUIHSINONILXD JHId _
4

’ , % ~ [ 3ONI¥ISIY | oanas 1
~ 2 SINGT A5 .
SIAHHY
J Q3aIs F18NOa;
ﬂ_ .nﬁ? »338 Ny INMG100 _r
(5 N A A "mr)iugiaaﬂ g SimgS Ni =
. ) I ¢ p = = =370 —p =>
w@««o £ rs [ Su3dis u3aa N m
S [__sarans :pnis ..ml
= — ——t — =D —
B mre ] Egor e
Sz, —3 =D J§ =D =) ¢ | o0
o U S xm_ | IS [ | H et | P
i QF_HW m._mmﬁ CfaIs 318nod S iﬂ?uﬂ._la_% o
= - > = —d =2l ¢
q =
P = == | :
=> £
Alva =
sniadlLaos sffaviao mw

Page 46




A

Ay g _®Rg
10 1NOAVT Y00 wv | zzmomt
Sruer 00):1 9eds £V
‘o Bupaig “ON qor | I S 111111111}
oo wp mg  WZ W, W
1NOAVT NV1d 30074 LNIN3ISVYE Ar0 0y uopuoT]
L TR apeled |enuad Zz-ie £y
$¥0103130 L¥3H R
AN N
NI 3ud | §
+ 1
SYOL03130 IHOWS Q,
| e |
Sv3yv I18YSNION _—
1
vYIWYD ALINNO3S q
| : 1=
3LN0Y 3dvOS3 ANVAING | (e
L o -
LHONNSIS 11X3 3u1d pon
+
SYIHSINONILX3 3xid _
+ 4 - -
30N3y343Y T08WAS |
! | <t
SINIOd A3
] b}
[@)]
_ ©
L al
&
A &=
N [] Fowoisixa _H_D
i €
-
JOVHOLS AYG
-~
=




Ao

Proposed conditions for CEO Supermarket 21-22 Central Parade, New
Addington

1. The licence holder shall ensure that the premises benefit from a CCTV system that
operates at all times, recording 24hr per day.

2.  The system shall incorporate a camera covering the entrance door and all areas where
alcohol is on display and shall be capable of providing an image which is regarded as
identification standard of every person entering the store. The precise positions of the
cameras may be agreed, subject to compliance with Data Protection legislation, with
the police from time to time.

3.  The system shall incorporate a recording facility and any recording shall be retained
and stored in a suitable and secure manner for a minimum of 30 days and shall be
made available, subject to compliance with Data Protection legislation, to the police
and licensing authority for inspection on request.

4. The system must be able to export recorded images to a removable means e.g.
CD/DVD/USB stick and have its own software enabled to allow playback/review.

5. A member of staff trained in the use of the CCTV system must be available at the
premises at all times that the premises are open to the public.

6. The system will display, on any recording, the correct time and date of the recording

7. Anincident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorized officer of the Local Authority or the Police, which will record the following:
- All crimes reported to the venue
- All ejections of patrons
- Any complaints received
- Any incidents of disorder
- Any faults in the CCTV system.
- Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
- Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

8.  There shall be no sale of beer, lager or cider with an ABV content above 6% save for
premium products/artisan products which have been agreed with the police (email
authority shall suffice).

9.  There shall be no self- service of spirits except for spirit mixtures with an ABV content
below 6%.

10. The applicant shall at all times maintain adequate levels of staff. Such staff levels shall
be disclosed, on request, to the licensing authority and police.

11. Signage shall be displayed at the exit of the premises requesting customers leaving
the premises late at night to do so quietly and with consideration so as not to disturb
nearby residents.

12. The premises licence holder shall ensure that an age verification policy shall apply to

Page 48



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

the premises whereby all cashiers shall be trained to ask any customer attempting to
purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years (or older if the licence
holder so elects) to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification being a passport
or photo-card driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of identification
that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence. Signage
shall be displayed in prominent positions within the store informing customers of the
age verification policy adopted by the licence holder.

All cashiers shall be trained to record refusals of sales of alcohol in a refusals register.
The register shall contain:-

- details of the time and date the refusal was made;

- the identity of the staff member refusing the sale;

- details of the alcohol the person attempted to purchase.

This register shall be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised
officer on request.

All staff engaged or to be engaged in the sale of alcohol on the premises shall receive
training in age restricted sales.

Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the sale of alcohol by
the staff member.

Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of no
more than 6 months.

No more than 10% of the total shop floor space shall be given for the sale of alcohol.
All spirits on sale will be kept behind the cigarette/kiosk counter.

Training records shall be kept at the premises available for inspection by a police
officer or other authorised officer on request.

Page 49

A



A=

Good morning,

I wish to register my objection to the above licensing application.

Central Parade, New Addington, is designated by the Licensing Department as a Cumulative
Impact Zone. This area was designated due to the large number of alcohol outlets in a small,
condensed area. Currently, out of 44 retailers on Central Parade, 9 have a licence to sell
alcohol.

Anti social behaviour is a continuous concern for those who use Central Parade both as
retailers and consumers.

The risk of Crime & Disorder increases with every licence issued.

The enticement for young people to congregate and harass others to buy alcohol on their
behalf leads to a feeling of unease amongst many.

The potential increase of shoplifting, already suffered by some retailers, is obvious.

We have a number of alcohol reliant individuals that meet regularly around Central Parade
who, in an intoxicated state, damage the area and the reputation of Central Parade.

I strongly feel that this application should be refused.

Kind regards

Tony

Cllr Tony Pearson
New Addington South Ward

Hi

| have just heard that there is a planning application to open a Turkish alcohol selling
establishment and | believe that it is highly important that you don’t grant this application.
My reasons for objecting are that there is already more than half the shops at the Central
parade New Addington selling alcohol and there is a real problem in our area with people
alcohol and drugs misuse.

It's almost impossible to protect this community when alcohol is so widely sold at our local
shops. We already have drunks hanging around the shops begging and harassing members
of the community.

There is far too many young people with no where to go and nothing to do other than to
hang around the shops using antisocial behaviour. In order to improve the lives of these
people we need to be encouraging health and well being and do what we can to prevent
crime and disorder. | really think if we have mostly fast food, alcohol and tobacco being sold
you are only encouraging this issue to get worse.

Also there are flats above the parade of shops and the antisocial gangs and drunks make
the residents lives hell. They use the stairwells in between the shops to urinate in. Elderly
members of the community don't feel safe using these shops but don’t have the mobility to
go elsewhere and the fact that if you actually look up healthy recipes and try to get all the
ingredients at the Parade you can't, but you can get all the alcohol you need?

I currently avoid my local shops and have to drive out of New Addington causing more
damage to our environment with pollution because | neither feel safe at the Central parade
and there are no shops over there that actually inspires me to go there.

What we need is a shop that sells clothing or maybe a nice healthy promoting restaurant as
there is nothing like that in New Addington or a decent supermarket.

I hope you will listen to members of our community for a change and start doing the best you
can to help improve the lives of this community.

Kind Regards

Dear Sir /Madam,

I would like to object to the application of the above. Whilst I appreciate the new owners will
want to maximise their earning potential and I’m pleased this store will no longer be vacant
however, adding yet another alcohol outlet will, in my opinion-

Page 50



o g

e Further increase the levels of drinking and inebriated people on and around Central
Parade which is regularly witnessed by young children and families going about their
daily activities.

e Present levels of drinking on the Parade can often cause scenes of arguing, public
urination and other anti-social actions witnessed by people just trying to do their
shopping.

o Ibelieve there is a CIZ in place already due to the very high number of outlets which
already serve alcohol for very long hours daily along Central Parade, there is just no
need for another.

e There has been a recent increase in ASB by young people and more worryingly
increases in knife crime locally and on Central Parade, I believe granting this license
will just encourage more crime.

I wish the new owners all the very best and love to new clean and painted frontage and will
definitely visit and shop, but I hope you can find another niche product or service in the
market which will be of far more benefit to the community than alcohol.

Yours faithfully,

I object to the sale of alcohol on the premises of 21-22 central parade newaddington I believe
that this will cause more antisocial behaviour and criminal damage. There is plenty of stores
that sell alcohol and fill this will only encourage public nuisance

Page 51



= \\Shelt_e_r
N150.1m>

(¥ Social Services

Centre

Centre

Community

N

Car Park \’\
50 ) :
: I & Londen Borough of Croyden I>\ g \\

Licence No. 100018257} 2012

CROYDON Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey (License No: 100019257) 2011
www.croydon.gov.uk London Borough Croydon p Jr
Scale 1:1250 K= 2l - 22 Ce~nTRAL YALANE

18-Jul-2022
Page 52



Agenda Iltem 6

REPORT TO: LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
27 July 2022

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: LICENSING ACT 2003 — APPLICATION FOR SUMMARY

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE

LEAD OFFEICER: Corporate _Director, Sust_ainable Communities,
Regeneration & Economic Recovery

Clir. Scott Roche

CABINET MEMBER: Streets & Environment

WARDS: South Croydon

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:

This report is specific to this application and has no implications on the
Council’s Corporate Policies.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

This application is being processed as part of normal duties carried out by the
Department with no additional costs involved.

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: N/A

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
The Sub — Committee is asked to consider the application for a review of the
premises licence at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA under the
provisions of Section 53C of the Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) and pursuant
to the provisions of Section 53D of the Act, a review of the Interim Steps
imposed.

1.1 In undertaking the review under S53C, the sub committee must consider what
steps it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives
having regard to the relevant representations as contained within the report,
appendices and made at the hearing; the Council’s Licensing Policy and
Statutory Guidance issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2  The steps the licensing authority can take under S53C are:
¢ the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;
e the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail (or other licensable activities)
from the scope of the licence;
¢ the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;
e the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and
e the revocation of the licence.

Page 53



For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is
altered or omitted or any new condition is added.

1.3  Under Section 53D of the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub-Committee is required
to review any Interim Steps that have been taken by the relevant licensing
authority under section 53B that have effect on the date of the hearing.

1.4 In conducting the review under section 53D, the sub-committee must—
(a) consider whether the interim steps are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives;
(b) consider any relevant representations; and
(c) determine whether to withdraw or modify the interim steps taken.

1.5 The power of the sub-committee on a review under section 53D includes a
power to take any of the following interim steps—
(a) the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;
(b) the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence;
(c) the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;
(d) the suspension of the licence;
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is
altered or omitted or any new condition is added.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Sub-Committee that an application
has been received for a review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act
2003 (“the Act”). This application is made by the police, as a responsible
authority. The Councils’ licensing sub committee is therefore required to hear
the application. In addition, Interim Steps were imposed under Section 53B of
the Licensing Act and the Sub-Committee is required to review these as part
of the determination of the review under Section 53C of the Act.

3. DETAIL

3.1 A Protocol for Licensing Hearings and a Procedure for Licensing Sub-
Committee Hearings has previously been agreed by the Licensing Committee
(minute A/24/05 refers). The protocol has been subsequently amended by the
licensing committee (minutes A/32/06, A/40/07 and A/07/12 refer and the
Protocol was last amended by the licensing committee on 30 September
2020, minute 15/20 refers).

3.2 The premises licence holder, the applicant and the other parties making

representations have been notified of the hearing in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as amended) and the

Page 54




3.3

5.1

5.2

Licensing Act 2003 (Summary Review of Premises Licences) Regulations
2007 (the Regulations).

Appendix A to this report provides details of the Review.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to
the risks at 4.2 & 4.3. This application is being processed as part of normal
duties and therefore the work associated with it is contained within the
departmental budget.

The effect of the decision

The decision of the Sub-Committee may be subject to appeal and/or Judicial
Review

Risks

An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of
the application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard
to any award of costs against it.

Options

The options available are as detailed in the recommendations at paragraph 1
above.

Savings/ future efficiencies

None identified.

(Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance Place, Residents & Gateway)
COMMENTS OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL

The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director
of Law and Governance that the sub-committee must determine this matter,
taking into account relevant representations, the Licensing Act 2003, statutory
guidance and the Council’s own licensing policy.

The licensing authority must hold a full review of the premises licence and
determine the review within 28 days after the day of receipt of the chief
officer’s application. There can be no adjournment of the hearing or delay in
reaching a determination beyond the end of the 28 day period. This must take
place even if the chief officer asks to withdraw his application or
representations.

Page 55



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

At the review hearing, the licensing authority must consider what steps are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives taking into account
any change in circumstances since any interim steps were imposed, consider
any relevant representations, and review the interim steps already taken.

In making its final determination the steps the licensing authority can take are
as detailed in the recommendations:

* the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

* the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

* the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;

* the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and

* the revocation of the licence.

Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the
alteration or modification of existing conditions or addition of any new
conditions, including those that restrict the times at which licensable activities
authorised by the licence can take place.

The licensing authority’s determination on review does not have effect until
the end of the 21 day period given for appealing the decision, or until the
disposal of any appeal that is lodged.

Under Section 53D of the Act and to ensure that there are appropriate and
proportionate safeguards in place at all times, the licensing authority is
required to review any interim steps that it has taken that are in place on the
date of the hearing and consider whether it is appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives for the steps to remain in place, or if they should be
modified or withdrawn. In making its decision, the licensing authority must
consider any relevant representations made.

In conducting the review of the interim steps the licensing authority has the
power to take any of the steps that were available to it at the initial stage
namely

* the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

* the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence;
* the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence; and
* the suspension of the licence.

Any interim steps taken at the review hearing apply until— (a) the end of the
period given for appealing against a decision made under section 53C (21
days), (b) if the decision under section 53C is appealed against, the time the
appeal is disposed of, or (c) the end of a period determined by the relevant
licensing authority (which may not be longer than the period of time for which
such interim steps could apply under (a) or (b) above).

The licence holder or the chief officer of police may appeal against the
decision made by the licensing authority concerning its review of the interim
steps to a magistrates’ court. The appeal must be made within 21 days of the
appellant being notified of the licensing authority’s decision and must be heard
in full by the magistrates’ court within 28 days beginning with the day on which

Page 56



5.9

5.10

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

the appellant lodged the appeal.

An appeal against the final review decision may be made to a magistrates’
court within 21 days of the appellant being notified of the licensing authority’s
determination on the review. An appeal may be made by the premises licence
holder, the chief officer of police and/or any other person who made relevant
representations. The decision of the licensing authority, following the review
hearing, will not have effect until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or
until the disposal of the appeal.

Where appeals are lodged both against the decision following the review of
the interim steps and against the final determination, the courts may decide to
consider the appeal against the final determination within the 28 day period,
allowing the interim steps appeal to be disposed of at the same time.

(Approved by Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer).

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT

The Human Resources impact of supporting the Licensing Hearings will be
contained within the budgeted establishments of the Democratic and Legal
Services and Licensing Teams.

(Approved for and on behalf of HR by Jennifer Sankar, Head of HR
Sustainable Communities).

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all
applicants and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the
process is accessible to all groups within the community. In exercising
licensing functions, the Council is required to comply with Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010 which requires public bodies to have due regard to the need
to:

Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by the Act;

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it; and

Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.

For these purposes the protected characteristics are
age

disability

gender reassignment

marriage and civil partnership

pregnancy and maternity

race

Page 57



7.3

8.1

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

religion or belief
sex
sexual orientation

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:

Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their
protected characteristics.

Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these
are different from the needs of other people.

Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an
improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES IMPACT

The licensing objectives contained in the Act are:
the prevention of crime and disorder

public safety

the prevention of public nuisance and

the protection of children from harm.

Officers comments and relevant representations on the impact of the
application on these objectives appear in Appendix A to the application.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything
they do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a
public authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The
key elements of this include:

The right to a fair hearing;

The right to a public hearing;

The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal,
The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.

When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as
the Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet
the full requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing
Sub Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can
consider all aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing
of the facts).

Page 58



10.3 So, while it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub
Committee as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it
is not. Further, the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of
Natural Justice and the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury
reasonable’.

11. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS
11.1  Protocols agreed in relation to Licensing Hearings are within the Council’s

Constitution and will be accessible as part of the Council’s Publication
Scheme maintained under the Freedom of Information Act.

CONTACT OFFICER: Michael Goddard, Head of Environmental Health,
Trading Standards and Licensing, Sustainable
Communities Department ext. 61838

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Application Forms
Licensing Hearings and Protocol and Procedure

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

APPENDIX A

The Application

This report concerns an application for a summary review of the premises
licence held by Ravichandran Nattuselvam and Aravindaiah Priyadharshan
Rajarajan at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA. The application is
made by the police, as a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003
and was received by the Council’s Licensing Team on 4 July 2022.

The premises licence was granted to Ravichandran Nattuselvam and
Aravindaiah Priyadharshan Rajarajan by way of transfer on 1 August 2019.

This application is made under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 which
allows the police, where the police consider that a licensed premises is
associated with serious crime or serious disorder (or both), to apply to the
licensing authority for a summary review of the licence. This power is only
available to the Police and only applies where a premises licence authorises
the sale of alcohol.

A copy of the review application and accompanying certificate signed by a
Police Superintendent is attached at Appendix A1.

The licensing sub committee took the interim step on 5 July 2022 of
suspending the premises licence pending the full review hearing. The
premises licence holder made representations on this decision and those
representations were considered by the Council’s licensing sub committee at
a hearing on 7 July 2022 which was attended by the premises licence holder.
The sub committee, having considered the representations, determined that
the premises licence should remain suspended pending the review hearing
which must be held within 28 days of the application being made. Copies of
the decision by the licensing sub committee on 5 July to impose interim steps,
the representations from the premises licence holder on those interim steps
and the decision of the licensing sub committee on 7 July to maintain the
interim steps are attached at Appendix AZ2.

Between 5 and 18 July 2022, there was a statutory 10 working day period in
which responsible authorities and other persons could make representations
on the application. This included the police. The police made further
representations in this period.

A copy of the further police representations is attached at Appendix A3.

An extract from the Home Office statutory guidance to Local Authorities under
the Licensing Act 2003 concerning summary reviews is attached at Appendix
A4.

A copy of the premises licence is attached at Appendix A5.

Page 61



2.1

3.2

Promotion of Licensing Objectives

There are four licensing objectives that underpin the Licensing Act 2003 and
section 4 of the Act states that a licensing authority must carry out its
functions with a view to promoting those licensing objectives, which are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance and
The protection of children from harm.

Relevant representations

Representations have been received on the application from two other
responsible authorities and a local resident as an ‘other person’. Copies are
attached at Appendix A6.

The licence holder has been provided with a copy of the review application
and a copy of all the representations made.

4 Policy Considerations

4.1 Under the terms of the Act, the Council has published a Statement of Licensing
Policy. This is available on the Council website at www.croydon.gov.uk . Hard copies
are also available from the Council’'s Place Department and copies of the policy will
also be available at the licensing sub committee hearing. The following paragraphs
from the Statement are considered particularly relevant with regard to this
application.

4.8 The fundamental principles of the Act and its accompanying guidance are that
nothing in this ‘Statement of Policy’ will:

undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 Act for a variety of
permissions and have each application considered on its individual merits, or,

override the right of any person to make representations on any application or seek
a review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so under the
2003 Act.

4.9

4.10

Parties should be aware that, for a representation to be considered relevant,
it must be one that is about the likely effect of the grant of a new
licence/certificate or variation of an existing licence/certificate on the
promotion of the four licensing objectives. Also, if the representation is made
by an ‘other person’, it will not be relevant if the licensing authority considers
it to be ‘vexatious or frivolous’, or in the case of a review, ‘repetitious’.

Applicants and those making relevant representations in respect of

applications or seeking a review of a licence or a certificate have the right of
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the decisions of the Council.

Page 62


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

4.11

412

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

In considering all licence/certificate applications, the Council will take into
account the character of the surrounding area, the impact of the
licence/certificate on that area and the nature and character of the operation.

As part of any application for a premises licence/club premises certificate or a
variation to an existing licence/certificate, applicants are required to submit an
‘Operating Schedule’, which must include the steps proposed to promote the
Licensing Objectives set out in paragraph 2.2.

Part 5 of this Statement gives guidance to applicants on some of the matters
they may wish to consider when preparing their Operating Schedules.

Licensing is about permitting activities but also ensuring the responsible
management of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events
within the terms of the 2003 Act, and conditions are likely to be attached to
licences, certificates and permissions that will cover matters which are within
the control of individual licensees.

However, the Council acknowledges that it can only impose conditions where
relevant representations have been received on an application and that such
conditions must be considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. Where no relevant representations have been made, the
application will be granted by the licensing authority in terms consistent with
the applicants operating schedule.

When considering these conditions, the Council will primarily focus on the
direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises on members
of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area
concerned.

NEED and CUMULATIVE IMPACT

417

4.18

4.19

The Council will not take ‘need’ into account when considering an application,
as this concerns ‘commercial demand’ and is a matter for the planning process
and the market.

However, the Council recognises that a significant number and type of
licensed premises in a particular area may lead to problems of crime, disorder
and nuisance and notes that in accordance with the Statutory Guidance to the
Act, their cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a
proper matter for the Council to consider. For example, national analysis of
alcohol sales data (sales in the on and off trade) has shown a positive
association at local authority level between off-trade sales and alcohol-specific
hospital admissions.

Where the Council recognises that there is such a cumulative effect it will
consider adopting a specific Cumulative Impact Policy for that area, if this is
shown to be necessary. Reducing availability, affordability and attractiveness
are some of the most effective ways to reduce alcohol-harm and related crime.

Page 63



4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

In these circumstances, the Council may consider that the imposition of
conditions is unlikely to address the apparent problems and may consider the
adoption of a special policy whereby there will be a presumption that new
premises licence or club premises certificate applications, or applications to
materially vary a premises licence, will be refused. A material variation may
be, for example, an increase in permitted hours or to add a licensable activity
onto a premises licence.

Based on the Statutory Guidance to the Act, in deciding whether to adopt such
a Policy in an area, the Council will consider the following:

e local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types
of crime and crime hotspots

statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences

the density and number of current premises selling alcohol

Alcohol use and misuse in Croydon’s population

Claimants of benefits due to alcoholism

Alcohol specific hospital admissions for under 18’s

Ambulance incidents and dispatches

Alcohol related road traffic accidents

Statistics on alcohol related emergency attendances and hospital
admissions

Mortality

Complaints recorded by the local authority

Evidence from local councillors and

Evidence obtained through local consultation.

There are concerns about parts of the borough which experience high levels
of alcohol related crime and alcohol related hospital admissions and where it
is clear that the density of shops selling alcohol for consumption off the
premises is significantly higher than in other parts of the borough.

As a result, the Council has considered it appropriate to designate, the
following four areas within Croydon as being subject to a special Cumulative
Impact Policy in respect of off licences and shops and supermarkets selling
alcohol off the premises:

I Along the Brighton Road; South End; High Street, George Street
corridor, from the Royal Oak Centre on Brighton Road, Purley to the
junction of George Street and Cherry Orchard Road in Central Croydon

i Along the London Road/Streatham High Road corridor, in 3 sections; from
the junction of London Road and Tamworth Road in West Croydon to the
j/w Canterbury Road; from the j/w Broughton Road to the j/lw Melrose
Avenue and; from the j/w Northborough Road to the borough boundary
with London Borough of Lambeth

Page 64



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

il Along the Brigstock Road and High Street, Thornton Heath corridor, from
the junction of Brigstock Road and London Road in Thornton Heath to the
junction of High Street, Thornton Heath and Whitehorse Lane

iv Along the length of Central Parade, New Addington

The effect of a Cumulative Impact Zone Policy for each of the areas listed
above is that where relevant representations are received on any new
applications for a premises licence to sell alcohol off the premises, or on a
material variation to an existing such premises licence there will be a
presumption under the special policy that the application will be refused. A
material variation would be, for example, an increase in permitted hours for
the sale of alcohol or to add the sale of alcohol off the premises as a licensable
activity to the premises licence.

The Cumulative Impact Policy is intended to be strict, and will only be
overridden in genuinely exceptional circumstances. However, the Licensing
Authority will not apply these policies inflexibly. It will always consider the
individual circumstances of each application; even where an application is
made for a proposal that is apparently contrary to policy.

It is not possible to give a full list of examples of when the council may treat
an application as an exception. However, in considering whether a particular
case is exceptional, the Licensing Authority will consider the reasons
underlying the policy.

The Licensing Authority will not consider a case to be exceptional merely on
the grounds that the premises have been or will be operated within the terms
of the conditions on the licence, or that are or will be generally well managed
because of the reputation or good character of the licence holder or operator.
This is expected in the conduct of all licensed premises. Moreover, licences
are for premises and can be easily transferred to others who intend to operate
within the scope of the licence and its conditions.

The Council will review the special policies regularly to see whether they have
had the effect intended and whether they are still needed or whether they need
expanding.

The Council will not use these policies solely:
e As the grounds for removing a licence when representations are

received about problems with existing licensed premises, or,

¢ To refuse modifications to a licence, except where the modifications are
directly relevant to the policy, for example where the application is for an
extension in permitted hours or to add a licensable activity.

The Council recognises though that where no relevant representations are

made in relation to an application in a cumulative impact area, the application
must be granted in terms consistent with the applicants operating schedule.

Page 65



4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

The Council recognises that the diversity of premises selling alcohol, serving
food and providing entertainment covers a wide range of contrasting styles
and characteristics and will have full regard to those differences and the
differing impact these will have on the local community.

Where an application is made for a new or transfer and variation of a licence,
in respect of premises that have closed and been unused and that closure
was to a relevant extent as a consequence of crime and disorder and/or
nuisance issues at the premises, the Council would expect the applicant to
make clear in their operating schedule how they will ensure the crime and
disorder and public nuisance objectives will be met, bearing in mind any
previous crime and disorder/nuisance concerns there may have been.

It therefore also recognises that, within the Cumulative Impact Policy areas, it
may be able to approve licences that are unlikely to add significantly to the
existing problems, and will consider the circumstances of each individual
application on its merits.

In addition to the cumulative impact zones listed above, the Council is aware
of concerns amongst responsible authorities and residents about the number
of shops licensed to sell alcohol for consumption off the premises in certain
other areas of the borough and the impact they may be having on crime and
disorder. It is not intended at this time to introduce cumulative impact zones in
these areas, however, they will be monitored and assessed regularly and
should concerns increase, consideration will given to formally identifying them
as cumulative impact zones. For the time being, those areas will be classed
as special stress areas and they are as follows:

. High Street & Portland Road, South Norwood
. Lower Addiscombe Road

The Council acknowledges that the licensing function cannot be used for the
general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond
the direct control of the licensee of any premises concerned and that apart
from the licensing function, there are a number of other measures available
for addressing issues of unruly behaviour that can occur away from licensed
premises.

In recognising the importance of such measures, the Council will continue to
seek further improvements to those already achieved in respect of planning
controls and working in partnership with local businesses and transport
operators on a number of measures to create a safe and clean environment
in the following areas:

Provision of extensive CCTV and radio communication systems
Improvements to street lighting

Rubbish collection and street cleaning

Provision of better late night bus, tram, rail and taxi/minicab services
Provision of Police Officers/street and litter wardens

Page 66



e Designation of areas within the borough, as part of a Public Space
Protection Order, where alcohol may not be consumed publicly and
monitoring the possible need for future designations in other parts of the
borough*

¢ Working in partnership with Croydon Borough Police on law enforcement
issues relating to disorder and anti-social behaviour. These include the
use of powers to issue fixed penalty notices, prosecuting those selling
alcohol to people who are underage and/or drunk, confiscating alcohol
from adults and children in designated areas and instant closure of
licensed premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, or
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise from the premises

e Working in partnership with Licensees and expecting them to support
existing and future agreed measures set up to promote the strategic
objectives for crime and disorder reduction within the Borough

¢ Acknowledging the powers of the police or other responsible authorities,
or a local resident or business under the 2003 Act, to seek a review of
the licence or certificate

*Would existing licence/certificate holders and new applicants please note that a number of areas within the
borough of Croydon are to lie within Public Space Protection Orders (PSPQO’s) that may control the consumption
of alcohol in public areas. Please contact the Council’s licensing team if you wish to discuss how such orders may
affect licensed premises.

5.

5.1.1

51.2

5.1.3

LICENSING OBJECTIVES and OPERATING SCHEDULES

The following sections set out the Council’s Policy relating specifically to the
four Licensing Objectives:

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety

the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

In each section the Council defines its intended outcome and lists the factors
that may influence achieving that particular objective, but because of the wide
variety of premises and activities to which this Policy applies, the lists provided
are not exhaustive. Applicants will know their premises best and will be
expected to address all aspects relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

Further, each section lists possible control measures to assist applicants, but
again these lists are not exhaustive. Also, many of the control measures
achieve more than one Objective but have not been listed under each Objective
and applicants do not need to mention a control measure more than once in
their Operating Schedule.

Page 67



5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

524

5.2.5

5.2.6

5.2.7

5.2.8

Crime and Disorder

Croydon Council is committed to reducing crime and disorder within the
Borough and creating an environment where people feel safe.

In addition to the requirements under the 2003 Act for the Council to promote
the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder, it also has a duty
under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably
can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough.

Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning
entertainment, alcohol and/or refreshment, can be a source of crime and
disorder problems.

The Council considers that the promotion of the Licensing Objective to prevent
crime and disorder also places a responsibility on licence holders to work in
partnership to achieve this Objective.

The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be
implemented and maintained so as to minimise or prevent crime and disorder
in and around the vicinity of their premises and events.

The Licensing Authority recommends that for certain events, a comprehensive
risk assessment is undertaken by premises licence applicants & holders to
ensure that crime and disorder and public safety matters are identified and
addressed. For larger public events, including those in open spaces and for
premises that wish to stage promotions or events, the Licensing Authority
recommends that licence applicants and holders address Risk Assessment
and post event debrief processes in their application operating schedule/event

planning.

Applicants and premises licence holders may wish to engage the services of
suitably trained individuals or companies to assist them in this risk assessment
process. In addition, they may seek guidance and advice from the Licensing
Authority or the Metropolitan Police regarding the process, although the
responsibility for undertaking the risk assessment remains with the
Applicant/Premises License holder as neither body is able to actually
undertake such risk assessments for applicants/licence holders. Applicants
and premises licence holders are also reminded that the Licensing Authority
is not able to recommend the services of a particular individual or company
for this purpose.

Drugs, violence, anti social behaviour and theft of customers property are
examples of crime and disorder issues which may be addressed by the

Page 68



5.2.9

following examples of recommended management practice being included in
operating schedules, having due regard to the type of premises and/or
activities:

effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises,
including associated open areas, appropriate storage of alcohol,
discouraging loitering/consuming alcohol outside the premises, ensuring
opening hours are adhered to

participation in responsible management schemes such as the ‘Best Bar
None’ accreditation/award scheme

appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of crime and disorder

adoption of existing and future best practice guidance (e.g. Safer
Clubbing, the National Alcohol Harm Reduction Toolkit and other
recognised codes of practice including those relating to drinks’
promotions, i.e. The Point of Sale Promotions published by the British
Beer and Pub Association and cheap drinks deals/Happy Hours)
acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ documentation, as recognised by
the Council in consultation with the Police

maintaining appropriate signage and a refusals log

employment of sufficient SIA licensed door staff, i.e. within nationally
accepted standards

provision of toughened or plastic glasses

provision of secure deposit boxes for confiscated items as recognised by
the Council in conjunction with the Police

provision of litter bins and security measures, such as lighting outside
premises

Other schemes including only purchasing alcohol from authorised
wholesalers, not selling certain alcohol types/strengths (e.g. high
strength beers/ciders or single cans above 6% ABV), restricting sales on
certain alcohol types (e.g. miniature spirits), allowing a ‘track and trace’
identifier on products so Police/Trading Standards can identify which off-
licence seized alcohol is from, signing up to local responsible retailer
schemes

Provision of closed circuit television, with cameras covering relevant
internal and external areas (including beer gardens) and entrances/exits
to premises

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the

above list will not be applicable in all cases and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from the Council Licensing Team and Croydon
Police Licensing and/or Crime Prevention Officers, as well as taking into
account, as appropriate, local planning and transport policies, and, tourism,
cultural and crime prevention strategies.

Page 69



5.2.10

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

53.4

5.3.5

5.3.6

Where relevant representations have been made, the Council will consider
attaching conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent crime
and disorder both inside and immediately outside the premises.

Public Safety

The Council is committed to ensuring that the safety of any person visiting or
working in licensed premises is not compromised. To this end, applicants will
be expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and
maintained to ensure public safety, relevant to the individual style and
characteristics of their premises and events.

The 2003 Act covers a wide range of premises that require licensing,
including, cinemas, concert halls, theatres, nightclubs, public houses, off
licences, cafés/restaurants, fast food outlets/takeaways and sometimes open
spaces.

Each of these types of premises present a mixture of different risks, with many
common to most premises and others unique to specific operations. These
will range from fire safety, including fire precautions and means of escape
arrangements in all types of premises, to the use of scenery and pyrotechnics
in theatres and special lighting effects in night clubs.

It is essential that premises are constructed or adapted and operated so as to
acknowledge and safeguard occupants against these risks.

The following examples of influencing factors are given to assist applicants
when addressing the issue of public safety during the preparation of their
Operating Schedule:

e the number of people attending the premises

¢ the condition, design and layout of the premises, including the means of
escape in case of fire

e the nature of the activities to be provided, in particular the sale of alcohol
and including whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent
nature

e the hours of operation and hours of opening if different

e customer profile (i.e. age, mobility)

o the use of special effects such as strobe lighting, lasers, pyrotechnics,
smoke machines, foam machines etc.

Public safety issues may be addressed by the following examples of
recommended management practice being included in operating schedules,
having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

o effective and responsible management of premises

e provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to
secure the safety of everyone attending the premises or event, i.e.

Page 70



5.3.8

5.3.9

5.4

5.4.1

54.2

54.3

number of door supervisors within nationally accepted standards (and
having SIA accreditation where necessary)

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the safety of everyone attending the premises or
event

e suitable customer-care policies for assisting lone customers taken ill or
injured etc. at the premises

e provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

e provision of toughened or plastic glasses

implementation of crowd management measures
regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures, appliances,
systems etc. pertinent to safety codes and standards

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Health and Safety Officers
and the London Fire Brigade.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to
promote public safety.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Council recognises the need to protect the amenities of people living,
visiting and working in the vicinity of licensed premises, whilst balancing the
rights of businesses to develop.

Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early
hours of the morning, can give rise to a range of public nuisances which may
impact adversely on local communities.

These concerns mainly relate to noise and disturbance, light pollution, noxious
smells, litter and anti-social behaviour and due regard will be taken on the
impact these may have.

LICENSING HOURS

54.4

5.4.5

The Council will generally deal with the issue of licensing hours having due
regard to the individual merits of each application, considering the potential
for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of the
business and examining any steps that might reduce the risk of nuisance.

The Council recognises that longer licensing hours for the sale of alcohol will
avoid concentrations of people leaving premises at the same time, which is
necessary to reduce the potential for friction at late night fast food outlets, taxi
ranks/minicab offices and other sources of transport that can lead to disorder
and disturbance.

Page 71



5.4.6

5.4.7

54.8

5.4.9

5.4.10

5.4.11

The Council will not set fixed trading hours within designated areas (“zoning”)
as it recognises this could lead to significant movements of people across
boundaries at particular times seeking premises opening later and would lead
to the peaks of disorder and disturbance the Council is trying to avoid.
Additionally, this would seemingly treat residents in one area less favourably
than those in another.

However, although the Council will treat each case on its individual merits,
generally it will not grant permission for licensable activities beyond 2330
hours on Sundays to Thursdays and Midnight on Fridays and Saturdays in
respect of public houses situated in areas having denser residential
accommodation. The Council would expect good reasons to be given to
support any application for extensions beyond these hours, including
addressing possible disturbance to residents and local parking. Additionally,
in these areas, consideration will be given to imposing stricter conditions in
respect of noise control.

SHOPS, STORES AND SUPERMARKETS

The Council acknowledges that the Guidance issued under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 states that shops, stores and supermarkets should
normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises
at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good
reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours.

However, there is local concern about crime and disorder associated with
shops licensed to sell alcohol off the premises. Accordingly, while the Council
will treat each case on its individual merits there will be a presumption that
permitted hours for the sale of alcohol will be restricted to between 8am and
11.30pm on Sunday to Thursday and 8am to midnight on Friday and Saturday
in respect of shops in residential areas or within one of the four relevant
Cumulative Impact Zones where representations are made by the police
and/or local residents and where premises are shown to be a focus of crime,
disorder or nuisance. Applications to vary the permitted hours for the sale of
alcohol off the premises within the above hours shall similarly be treated on
their merits

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE - GENERALLY

The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that they have identified satisfactory measures and will implement and
maintain these so as to prevent public nuisance, having due regard to the
style, characteristics and activities of their particular premises and events and
of the locality.

The following examples of influencing factors are given to assist applicants

when addressing the issue of the prevention of public nuisance during the
preparation of their Operating Schedule:

Page 72



the location of the premises and proximity to residential or other noise
sensitive premises

effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises
and associated open areas

the hours of opening

the nature of the activities to be provided and their location within the
premises, the customer profile, whether the activities are temporary or
permanent and whether they are to be held inside or outside

the design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of
noise limiting features

the number of people attending the premises

the availability of public transport

a ‘wind down’ period between the end of the licensable activities and the
closure of the premises

a ‘last admission time’ policy

5.4.12 Public nuisance issues may be addressed by the following examples of
recommended management practice being included in operating schedules,
having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

effective and responsible management and supervision of the premises,
including any outside areas

appropriate instruction, training and supervision of staff to prevent public
nuisance

adoption of current best practice guidance (i.e. Good Practice Guide on
the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs produced by the Institute of
Acoustics), including designing shop fronts so as to limit noise nuisance
from premises, i.e. from opening windows or continental-style concertina
doors

control of opening hours for all or part (i.e. garden areas) of the premises
— including other times when deliveries take place/rubbish and bottles
are binned — and the operation of generating plant and equipment
installation of acoustic insulation, suitably controlled, sited and silenced
ventilation or air conditioning systems and sound insulation and limiting
devices

managing people, including staff and traffic, arriving and leaving the
premises, including patrolling entrance queues

managing the departure of customers

liaising with transport providers

siting and operation of necessary external lighting, including security
lighting, with the possible nuisance to nearby properties

suitable arrangements for collection and disposal of litter, including
bottles, so as to minimise disturbance to nearby properties

no flyposting of events/careful distribution of flyers, including by
promoters

effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Page 73



5.4.13

5.4.14

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

554

5.5.5

Note: As this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the
above list will not be applicable in all cases, and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules applicants are
recommended to seek advice from Council Pollution Enforcement Officers.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to
prevent public nuisance.

Protection of Children from Harm
ACCESS TO LICENSED PREMISES

The wide range of premises that require licensing means that children can be
expected to visit many of these, often on their own, to buy food and/or for
entertainment.

Although the 2003 Act details certain age and/or time limitations on the
admission of accompanied or unaccompanied children to certain types of
licensed premises, the Council recognises that additional limitations may have
to be considered where it appears necessary to protect them from physical,
moral or psychological harm.

The Council will consider the merits of each application before deciding
whether to impose conditions limiting the access of children to individual
premises.

While no policy can anticipate every situation, the following are examples of
premises that will raise concern:

e where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature is commonly
provided;

e where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage
drinking;

e with a known association with drug taking or dealing;

o where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not,
for example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming
machines); and

e where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the
exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises.

When dealing with a licence application where limiting the access of children
is considered necessary, the Council may consider any of the following
options, in combination where appropriate:

e limitations on the hours when children may be present;
¢ limitations on the exclusion of the presence of children under certain
ages when particular specified activities are taking place;

Page 74



5.5.6

5.5.8

5.5.13

5.5.14

e limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given
access;

e age limitations (below 18);

e requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a
combination of requirements which provide that children under a
particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and

o full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable
activities are taking place.

The Council will not impose conditions on licences or certificates requiring that
children be admitted to any premises and, where no limitation is imposed, this
will be left to the discretion of the individual licensee. However, where
applicants volunteer prohibitions and limitations in their operating schedules
and no relevant representations have been made to the Council, these will
become conditions attached to the licence/certificate conditions and will be
enforceable as such.

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY

The Council recognises the Croydon Children’s Safeguarding Board and any
successor groups to be the ‘responsible authority’ competent to advise on
matters relating to the ‘protection of children from harm’, and to whom copies
of applications should be sent.

CHILDREN IN LICENSED PREMISES - GENERALLY

The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule
that suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be
implemented and maintained to protect children from harm, having due regard
to the style, characteristics and activities of their particular premises and/or
events.

Whilst children may be adequately protected from harm by the action taken to
protect adults, they may also need special consideration and no policy can
anticipate every situation. Applicants should consider the following influencing
factors, for which there is the potential for children to be exposed, when
addressing the issue of protecting children from harm during the preparation
of their Operating Schedule:

drugs, drug taking or drug dealing

gambling

activities of an adult or sexual nature

incidents of violence or disorder

environmental pollution such as noise or smoke
special hazards such as falls from heights
opportunities to purchase, acquire or consume alcohol

Note: A number of these factors are listed in more details in paragraph 5.5.6,
but as this Policy applies to a wide range of premises and activities, the

Page 75



5.5.15

5.5.16

5.5.17

5.5.18

6.1

6.2

above list will not be applicable in all cases, and in some cases
additional matters may need addressing.

Protection of children from harm issues may be addressed by the following
examples of recommended management practice being included in operating
schedules, having due regard to the type of premises and/or activities:

o effective and responsible management of premises

e provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to
secure the protection of children, including child performers, from harm

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the protection of children from harm

e adoption of best practice guidance (Public Places Charter)

¢ limitations on the hours when children may be present in all or parts of
the premises

e limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place

e imposition of requirement for children to be accompanied by an adult

e appropriate instruction and training for counter staff in the prevention of
underage sales, including acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’
identification, such as a photo card driving licence, a passport, a citizens
card, a validate card or a scheme which carries the PASS hologram logo
and keeping a ‘refusal’ book.

Additionally, when preparing their Operating Schedules, applicants are
recommended to seek advice from Council Licensing and Child Protection
Officers.

The Council will consider attaching Conditions to licences and certificates to
protect children from harm.

While the Council expects Licence holders to comply with the law, the 2003
Act details a number of specific offences designed to protect children in
licensed premises and the Council will work closely with the police to ensure
the appropriate enforcement of the law, especially relating to the underage
sale and supply of alcohol to children.

INTEGRATING STRATEGIES and AVOIDING DUPLICATION

There are many stakeholders in the leisure industry covering a wide range of
disciplines and although their strategies are not always directly related to the
promotion of the licensing objectives, they often indirectly impact upon them.

The Council therefore acknowledges the importance of co-ordinating and
integrating these policies, strategies and initiatives and will maintain multi-
disciplinary working groups to ensure its licensing policy integrates with local
crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism, race equality schemes and
cultural strategies, as well as any other plans relating to the management of
the town centre and the night-time economy.

Page 76



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

CRIME PREVENTION

Conditions attached to Licences and Certificates will, so far as possible, reflect
local crime prevention strategies. Examples of such conditions can be found
in the Pool of Conditions relating to prevention of crime and disorder contained
in the Statutory Guidance to the Act.

CULTURAL STRATEGIES

The Council will make arrangements to monitor the impact of licensing on
regulated entertainment, particularly live music, ensuring that only necessary,
proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions impose any restrictions on
such events.

Where there is any indication that such events are being deterred by licensing
requirements, the statement of licensing policy will be examined to see if the
situation might be reversed.

PLANNING AND BUILDING CONTROL

The Council recognises that there should be a clear separation of the
planning, building control and licensing regimes in order to avoid duplication
and inefficiency.

Licensing applications will not be a re-run of the planning application and will
not cut across decisions made by the planning committee or permissions
granted on appeal.

The Council will however expect applications for premises licences or for a
variation to an existing premises licence at permanent commercial premises
to be from businesses having the relevant planning consent for the property
concerned. In addition, persons submitting temporary event notices should
ensure the premises in question has the requisite planning consent for the
proposed activities and hours of operation. Where this is not the case,
applicants will be expected to show good reason why the premises do not
have planning permission.

The Croydon Local Plan sets out the criteria that will be used to assess
planning applications for any changes of use that require planning permission.
Some changes of use do not require planning permission but an application
for prior approval may be required to ascertain whether there are matters
related to the change of use that do require planning permission. Applicants
should contact the Council's Development Management service at
development.management@croydon.gov.uk with any enquiries related to
planning applications or the prior approval process.

Any application for planning permission will be expected to take into account
the impact of noise and fumes (and other forms of potential nuisance) on
neighbouring premises and to provide details of any mitigating measures, as
applicable.

Page 77


mailto:development.management@croydon.gov.uk

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

9.1

10.

10.1

The Council will ensure that if requested, reports will be sent from the licensing
committee to the planning committee advising them of the situation regarding
licensed premises in Croydon, including the general impact of alcohol related
crime and disorder, to assist them in their decision-making.

ADVANCING EQUALITY

The Council recognises its legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 to
eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a
characteristic and those who don't.

The Council will assess and consult on the likely impact and monitor for any
adverse impact on the advancement of equality which may arise as a result of
this Policy Document and will publish the results.

DUPLICATION

The Council will, so far as possible, avoid duplication with other legislation and
regulatory regimes that already place obligations on employees and
operators, e.g. the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Environmental
Protection Act 1990, the Regulatory Reform Fire Safety Order 2005 and the
Equality Act 2010 in respect of accessibility for disabled people.

Conditions relating to public safety will only be attached to premises licences
and club premises certificates where considered necessary for the promotion
of that licensing objective and not covered by any other legislation and where
regulations do not cover the unique circumstances of certain licensable
activities in specific premises.

The Council acknowledges that bingo clubs are dealt with under the Gambling
Act 2005 and will have due regard to the relevant advice regarding duplicating
licence conditions which has been given under both this legislation and the
2003 Act when dealing with applications relating to alcohol, regulated
entertainment or late night refreshment under the 2003 Act.

STANDARDISED CONDITIONS

Where Conditions are properly attached to licences or certificates they will be
tailored to the individual style and characteristics of the particular premises
and events concerned.

ENFORCEMENT

It is essential that licensed premises are maintained and operated so as to
ensure the continued promotion of the licensing objectives and compliance
with the specific requirements of the 2003 Act and it is the responsibility of
premises licence holders and designated premises supervisors (where
applicable) to ensure this happens and that regulatory compliance is

Page 78



maintained. The Council and its partners will make arrangements to monitor
premises and take appropriate enforcement action to ensure this but
enforcement action should be considered to be the last resort and such
intervention should not be necessary where premises are operated &
managed effectively.

10.2  Each of the Responsible Authorities under the Act may make representations
on an application or seek a review of a premises licence/club premises
certificate, based on concerns around any of the licensing objectives. That
said, it is anticipated that specific responsible authorities will take a central
advisory & enforcement role, as necessary, with regard to relevant licensing
objectives, for example —

e Prevention of crime and disorder — Police

e Prevention of Public Nuisance — Council Environmental Health
(Pollution) Team and the Planning Department

e Public Safety — Council Food & Safety Team or HSE (as applicable) and
the LFB

e Protection of Children from Harm — Croydon Children’s Safeguarding
Board, Police and the Trading Standards Team

10.3  Under the London Borough of Croydon Licensing Act 2003 Enforcement
Protocol, originally approved by the Council’s substantive Licensing
Committee on 21 June 2006, using the principles of risk assessment, the
Council will work closely with the responsible authorities in enforcing licensing
law and inspecting licensed premises. This should ensure that resources are
more effectively concentrated on problem and high risk premises. This
Protocol shall be reviewed, through a separate process to this policy review in
the coming months and an updated version shall be available from the Council
Licensing Team and posted on the Council’s website.

10.4 The Council will carry out its regulatory functions in accordance with good
enforcement practice and particular regard will be had to fundamental
principles. In that regard, Enforcement shall be:

Targeted
Consistent
Transparent
Proportionate
Necessary

Any enforcement activity shall be undertaken in a fair, open and consistent
manner in conformity with the above principles.

The Home Office has produced Statutory Guidance under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003. The following paragraphs from the Guidance are re produced
below to assist the sub committee —

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has
been engaged following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a

Page 79



result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is
appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives.

4.2 All relevant parties have been made aware of the date, time and location of
the Sub Committee meeting.

4.3 An ordnance survey extract map of the area with the application premises
at the centre is attached at Appendix A7.

Page 80



A\

PROTECTIVE MARKING

ikl TOTAL POLICING

Form for Applying for a Summary Licence Review
Application for the review of a premises licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003
(premises associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both)

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing the form by
hand please write legibly in block capitals. {n all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in
black ink.

Use additional sheets if necessary.

Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number:
Name: METROPOLITAN POLICE SERVICE
Address:

ADDINGTON POLICE STATION , ADDINGTON VILLAGE ROAD

Posttown: CROYDON Post code: CRO 5AQ
Ref. No.:
| _PC ZOE GARROD

on behalf of the chief officer of police for the Metropolitan Police area apply for the_ré;ie_w of a.p-remlse_s
licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. Premises details

Pos:tmal address of bremlées or club premises, or if none, ordnance suﬁrey map referehce or des’cﬂbtion:
AACHIS MASALA CHENNALI, 3 BRIGHTON ROAD

- Post code:
Post town: ¥ CROYDON (ifknown CR2 6EA

2. Premises licence details

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if knowh):
MR RAVICHANDRAN NATTUSELVAM and MR ARAVINDAIAH PRIYADHARSHAN RAJARAJAN

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known):

05/02425/LIPREM

3. Certificate under section 53A(1)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidarce note 1)

¥ conﬂ;m fhat-a certif-i-c;tef has Be‘én éi#en by a sé_ni-t_:r_ .mel'nb.er of the po'l'ic;;;ré_é' for thep_olice are;;l;ov; e
that in his opinion the above premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder or both, and the
certificate accompanies this application. ;

Please tick the box'to confirm: | [X]

Page 81



PROTECTIVE MARKING A ‘

4. Details of association of the above premises with serious crime, serious disorder or both
(Please read guidance note 2)

On Sunday 4 July 2022 at 0245 hours Police were called made by the premises stating a fight was in progress at the
location. Police attended and found three males with stab wound injuries. One of the victims had been stabbed
seven times, the other two males both received mutliple stab wounds. Two of the males required urgent medical
assistance.

Police have established that an altercation has started within the premises, with the music being turned off and
patrons asked to leave. Whilst leaving the premises and walking down the stairs a further incident has started. One
of the male victims is seen to fall down the stairs, this is the male that had been stabbed seven times. This is
currently an ongoing Police investigation.

Police have established that this is a weekly promoted event, in which the event organiser gives the venue £1,000 for
use of the venue, they bring their own alcohol and security. The Premises licence holder has no control over these
events.

It is clearly this premises is linked to both serious crime and disorder, with outstanding suspects there is a high
probability of reprisals leading to more serious crime and disorder.

Police therefore repectfully ask the committee as an interim step, to suspend this premises licence to ensure no further
incident of serious crime and disorder are committed.

Further supporting documents will be submitted in due course.
Signature of applicant

Signature: iggﬂc?e( C2B0\SN  Date: 0410712022

Capacity: . CROYDON POLICE LICENSING OFFICER

Contact details for matters concerning this application

Surname:  GARROD First Names: | ZOE
Address: : :

ADDINGTON POLICE STATION, ADDINGTON VILLAGE ROAD,

Post town: CROYDON Post code: CRO 5AQ

Tel. No.: 0208 649 0172 Email: : . Zoe.p.garrod@met.police.uk

Notes for guidance

1. A certificate of the kind mentioned in the form must accompany the application in order for it to be valid under
the terms of the Licensing Act 2003. The certificate must explicitly state the senior officer's opinion that the
premises in question are associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both.

Serious crime is defined by reference to section 81 of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. in

summary, it means:

* conduct that amounts to one or more criminal offences for which a person who has attained the age of
eighteen and has no previous convictions could reasonably be expected to be sentenced to imprisonment for
a term of three years or more; or

¢ conduct that amounts to one or more criminal offences and involves the use of violence, results in substantial
financial gain or is conduct by a large number of persons in pursuit of a common purpose.
Serious disorder is not defined in legislation, and so bears its ordinary English meaning.

2. Briefly describe the circumstances giving rise to the opinion that the above premises are associated with serious
crime, serious disorder, or both.

Retention Period: 7 years
MP 146/12

Page 82



A

PROTECTIVE MARKING

METROPOLITAN Form 693A
Lol AL TOTAL POLICING

Certificate under Section 53A(1)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003

Metropolitan Police Service | New Scotland | Yard 8-10 Broadway | London | SW1H 0BG

I hereby certify that in my opinion the premises described below are associated with:
both serious crime and serious disorder

Premises (Include business name and address and any other relevant identifying details).

Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or descriptioh:

AACHIS MASALA CHENNAI

Post town: CROYDON Post code: CR2 6EA
(if known)

Premises licence number (if known):

05/02425/LIPREM

Name of premises supervisor (if known):

MR RAVICHANDRAN NATTUSELVAM

| am a Superintendent* in the Metropolitan Police Service.

*Insert rank of officer giving the certificate, which must be superintendent or above.

| am giving this certificate because | am of the opinion that other procedures under the

Licensing Act are inappropriate in this case because:

(Give a brief description of why other procedures such as a standard review process are thought to be inappropriate, e.g. the
degree of seriousness of the crime and/or disorder, the past history of compliance in relation to the premises concerned)

T lhowe comsiclured dhe clitmotine cplions wdion medlo . Vioyerer %O"'\M
concemee olo da enneproey ol ~s e e e poeizd Cnilie, venis . Assreun
g bowo gteneel oo Tharte pacgle ve R vorvs 'I/'%ie‘ji/)a_(o‘ﬂ%a\,‘xh& ww(o«rfot%&(
fom olo concomed re. Ao oo QO;SM (oeebion %Z cetaliedion, Ao noer ‘
festure . cymab(ﬂge&u/e«*—wt%bwwcpw Cowrs? of ceflion |

A}

7 S* &
Signature: D e D Seepr _ Date: 04/07/2022

Retention Period: 7 years
MP 147112

Page 83



A L

Goddard, Michael

From: Goddard, Michael

Sent: 05 July 2022 11:31

To: eehisd68 Grparaieomm

Subject: FW: Licensing Act 2003 - Summary Review of Premises Licence

Attachments: 3BrightonRoadPoliceSumRevApp.pdf; 3BrightonRoadStatGuidSumRevExt.pdf;

3BrightonRoadPoliceSumRevAppPL.docx

FAO: Ravichandran Nattuselvam and Aravindaiah Priyadharshan Rajarajan.

Hello, | am writing to you as the holders of the premises licence at Aachis Masala Chennai, 3
Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA.

Further to my email of yesterday (below) and the attached, | am writing to you now to advise you
that the Council’s Licensing Sub Committee have considered whether it is necessary to take any
Interim Steps in respect of the application by the Police for a Summary Review of your premises
licence.

The Licensing Sub Committee have determined that the premises licence should be suspended,
pending the review hearing that will be held within 28 days, to ensure no further incidents of
serious crime and disorder are committed.

Accordingly, your premises licence is suspended forthwith and no licensable activities are
permitted to be provided at Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA
pending the review hearing.

Should you wish to discuss this matter or require clarification on any point, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

Michael.

Michael Goddard
Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Environmental Health, Trading Standards & Licensing
Sustainable Communities, Regeneration & Economic Recovery
6th Floor, Zone A

Bernard Weatherill House

8 Mint Walk

Croydon

CRO 1EA

Email: michael.goddard@croydon.gov.uk

From: Goddard, Michael

Sent: 04 July 2022 21:52

To: EERA PRI R

Subject: Licensing Act 2003 - Summary Review of Premises Licence
1

Page 84



AL

Hello Mr. Nattuselvam — as you are aware, the Police have applied for a summary review of the
premises licence you hold with Aravindaiah Priyadharshan Rajarajan in respect of 3 Brighton
Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA. You are also the named Designated Premises Supervisor on the
premises licence.

This is a fast track’ review and means that a review of the premises licence will need to be
considered by the licensing sub committee at a hearing within 28 days.

In the interim, the sub committee is asked to consider whether it is necessary to take any interim
steps (place temporary conditions on the licence) pending the review hearing.

The interim steps that the licensing authority (through the licensing sub committee) must consider
taking are:

the modification of the conditions of the premises licence*

the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence
the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence and
the suspension of the licence.

*Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the alteration or modification of
existing conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that restrict the times at
which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place.

t attach a copy of the application by the Police for a summary review of the premises licence. This
also includes a certificate signed by a Police Superintendent. This is a formal note which identifies
the licensed premises and sets out that in their opinion, the premises are associated with serious
crime, serious disorder or both.

| also attach a copy of your premises licence and an extract from the statutory guidance to local
authorities from the Home Office in respect of summary reviews.

The licensing authority has 48 hours from receipt of the application to consider whether it is
necessary to take any interim steps. The Police submitted the application at 4pm this afternoon.

A Council licensing sub committee will now consider whether it is necessary, in their opinion to
take any interim steps. The sub committee do not have to meet in person. it can be done
remotely.

Once the licensing sub committee have considered this matter and given their decision, | will
update you accordingly.

Should you wish to discuss this matter or require clarification on any point, please do not hesitate
to contact me

Michael.

Michael Goddard
Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Page 85



Michael Goddard

Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & Licensing
6" Floor, Zone A

Bernard Weatherill House

8 Mint Walk

Croydon

CRO 1EA

05t July 2022
FOR YOUR VERY URGENT ATTENTION

By e-mail: michael.goddard@croydon.gov.uk

Dear Sirs

Re: AACHIS MASALA CHENNAI;

PREMISES LICENCE NUMBER: 05/02425/LIPREM;

PREMISES SUPERVISOR: MR RAVICHANDRAN NATTUSELVAM

|, RAVICHANDRAN NATTUSELVAM write this letter to bring to your urgent
consideration the following, in the above matter in connection with an incident

which took place on the early hours of 4" July 2022.

1. The business is a 70-seater restaurant with a party hall for around 200
guests. The Business operating hours are 7 days between 10 a.m. to 2.30

a.m. The business serves alcohol to its customers.

2. The party hall is booked for separate individuals and especially on
weekends. For the parties, the customers are allowed to occupy the

party hall on their own as private parties.

3. On 4™ July 2022, | as the supervisor was at the premises and as usual
switched off the lights and music and all activities at 2.30 a.m. We had

our own security at the premises always.

Page 86

Ao



AL

4. After the operating hours, the customers vacated the premises. After
they left the premises, the incident took place outside the premises, i.e.,
outside the door. The CCTV at the doorstop has evidence that nothing
happened inside the premises.

5. No guests or customers had any weapons on them within the premises
as the security checked each and every one.

6. Under the Date Protection Act and GDPR, it is wrong to take the ID
details of the customers who come to the restaurant.

7. The Police are completely wrong in their account of events, as they are
saying that the ‘altercation has started within the premises, with the
music being turned off. There is simply no evidence for this. The
incident clearly happened outside the door of the premises. Music was
not turned off because of an altercation within the premises. { submit
that there was no such altercation that happened within the premise.

8. The Police are wrong in concluding and assuming that the male who
appeared to have fallen down the stairs, fell down as a result of the
stabbing. There is no CCTV evidence to show the victim being stabbed.
The Police are admitting there is an ongoing investigation on this and
until it is completed no action should be levelled against us.

9. The Police did not take any fingerprints at the time of the incident but
took them only at 5 p.m. in the evening yesterday. This was almost 14
hours after the incident took place at 2.45 a.m.

10.The Police are wrong to state that there was no security provided by the
business as there is always security in place arranged and provided by
the business. This was established by and to the Police who took the
details.

11.The Police are wrong in saying it was established as a weekly promoted
event. We completely deny this as after long covid years, the people are
enjoying their freedom to party for different occasions which were long
pending and postponed due to COVID. e.g. birthday party, anniversary
party, business events etc.

12.The Police are wrong in saying and assuming that the licence holder has
no control over this. This is strongly disputed as according to the CCTV
recordings the licence holder is at the premises all the time. Even on that
day of the incident, the licence holder was in control of switching off the
lights, and music and asking people to leave in time. The Premises holder

Page 87



i.e. | am in full control and there is no history of any previous incidents
within the premises.

13.1t is completely wrong for the Police to say that my premises are linked
to ‘serious crime and disorder’. This is a very serious allegation and we
are making a complaint about the police conduct as we feel it is a racially
motivated allegation against us and we are being discriminated against.
This is a one-off incident that did not even take place within the
premises. The Police have maliciously framed saying ‘there is a high
probability of reprisals leading to more serious crime and disorder’.

In the above, | would like to conclude by submitting that your actions will
cause severe harsh consequences and damage to both my financial and
emotional well-being. In the current economic crisis, it is very hard to establish
a growing business, especially after COVID. It is unfair, unethical, and unlawful
for the Police and Council to take action against me without any proper
analysis. This is purely a racially motivated attack and | want this matter to be
immediately passed to the relevant authorities as believe racism and
discrimination are involved. | am not treated on an equal footing on par with
others in society. There are several stabbing incidents in Croydon and in pubs
run by Whites in which no action is taken like this. If that is the case, the entire
restaurants and pubs in the Croydon area must be suspended and their licence
confiscated.

We, therefore, submit that until the investigation is over and guilt or wrong is
established with evidence our licence must be reinstated immediately. Failing
which we will make a complaint against you further and we request you to
outline the complaint procedure.

Also, as stated above, we are making a complaint against the Police for their
wrongful malicious discriminatory, and racist actions and until such
investigation is over you are strongly requested to lift the suspension and allow
us to carry on with our trading activities.

Yours faithfully

AR <
jran Nattuselvam

Ravichan

Page-88



Goddard, M_ichael

From: Goddard, Michael
Sent: 08 July 2022 09:43
To: Raviaganaia.a
Subject: Decision Notification

FAO: Aravindaiah Priyadharshan Rajarajan and Ravichandran Nattuselvam —

Dear Sirs,

Re: Interim Steps Hearing — Representations from Premises Licence Holder on Interim
Steps Taken following Summary Review Application by Police

Address: 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA

Legislation: Licensing Act 2003

I refer to the application by the Police on 4 July 2022 for a summary review of the premises
licence you hold at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA.

The Council’'s Licensing Sub Committee considered the application and on 5 July 2022 they
determined that it was necessary to take the interim step of suspending the premises licence
pending the review hearing which will be held within 28 days of the review application being
submitted.

You submitted representations on this decision and your representations were heard by the
licensing sub committee at an interim steps hearing on 7 July 2022. Their determination was as
follows —

“The sub-committee considered whether the interim steps (suspension of the licence) were

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and determined whether to withdraw or
modify the steps taken. The sub-committee took into account the senior Police officer’s certificate

which accompanied the application by the Police for the summary review, the representations
made on behalf of the Chief Police Officer, and representations set out by the premises licence
holder in their letter dated 5 July, together with their further representations at the hearing. The
sub-committee also had regard to the relevant parts of the Revised Guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

In particular, in relation to the promotion of the licensing objective of prevention of crime and
disorder, the sub-committee took into account:

e The Police representation at the hearing that the risk of reprisal attacks at the premises
was “very real”, and that there were insufficient security and management controls at the
premises.

o The differing accounts as to the nature of events held at the premises, and the level of
security and management controls.

o The lack of any clear proposals by the licence holder as to any possible mitigation
measures.

The sub-committee therefore decided that the interim steps (suspension of the licence) were

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and determined that the steps taken
should not be withdrawn or modified”.

Page 89



Accordingly, the premises licence you hold for 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon remains
suspended and licensable activities cannot be provided at the premises under authority of that
premises licence, pending the review hearing.

Should you wish to discuss this matter or require clarification on any point, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

Michael.

Michael Goddard
Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing

CROYDON

www.croydon.gov.uk

Environmental Health, Trading Standards & Licensing
Sustainable Communities, Regeneration & Economic Recovery
6th Floor, Zone A

Bernard Weatherill House

8 Mint Walk

Croydon

CRO 1EA

Email: michael.goddard@croydon.gov.uk

Page 90



A

METROPOLITAN

POLICE

From: Police Licensing Team, To: The Licensing Committee
Addington Police Station Bernard Weatherill House,
Addington Village Road, 8 Mint Walk,

CROYDON CRO 5AQ CROYDON CRO 1EA

Date : Friday 15" July

Re: Summary Review of Premises Licence for Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South
Croydon, CR2 6EA

Members of The Licensing Committee,

I respectfully submit the following representations under the Licensing Act 2003 seeking a summary
review of the premises licence for Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA.

The premises is located on Brighton Road a busy main road between Croydon and Purley, the nearest
junction is Bartlett Street. The premises is situated between two disused buildings and is opposite South
Community Hospital which is a residential care home.

The premises main function is to operate as an Indian restaurant, with a large upstairs room being used for
events. The premises consists of a foyer entrance with stairs leading to the upstairs event space, or down
some steps to the main restaurant area. The upstairs event space consists of a large room, with access to a
rear fire exit. The room consists of a bar area and small stage.

The premises licence was originally granted on 6 September 2005, with the latest premises licence issued
on 1** August 2019 with updated premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor details.

The premises licence authorises sale by retail of alcohot and provision of regulated entertainment 1000-0200
hours daily. Provision of late night refreshment 2300-0230 hours daily. With nonstandard timings for all
three licensable activities extended to 0300 hours on the morning in which British summer time begins.

Crime and disorder licensing objective —

On Saturday 28" May 2022 at 2214 hours, Police received a call from an anoymous female who states that
there is a party going on at the venue, persons attending have hidden weapons inside the venue. Caller
stated one member of the security team had refused to work at the venue. The caller then further stated the
event is being run by the same organiser whom had an event in Barking a couple of weeks ago, where
someone allegedly was shot.

Page 91



A

On Sunday 5" june Police receive intelligence that a male has attended “Feel good Sunday” event in
Brighton Road. This is believed to be 3 Brighton Road who hold weekly Sunday events, although this cannot
be confirmed CCTV has been requested from the venue.

On Saturday 25" June 2022, Police received several calls stating a male had attended the premises, and had
had been taken into the toilet by three males and threatened with a firearm. He had then been ejected
from the premises.

On Saturday 2™ July 2022 Police from the Croydon Licensing Team attended the premises after the premises
licence holder informed them of an unlicensed music event taking place next door at 5 Brighton Road.
Whilst at the premises Police discussed the events that are being held on Sundays, raising their concerns
about those attending and the issues they are causing for the local community. Mr Ravichandran
Nattuselvam stated he was aware of the problems these events were causing and assured Police he would
no longer being running them.

On Monday 4™ July 2022 0245 hours Police were called to Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South
Croydon, CR2 6EA by one of the premises licence holders Mr Rajarajan, stating a fight was in progress. Upon
Police arrival a large crowd were outside the venue. Upon entry Police found a male lying on the floor
receiving medical treatment from a member of the public. Victim one had received seven stab wounds to
various parts of his body. Two further victims were located inside the premises each receiving several stab
wound injuries. Two of the victims were conveyed to St Georges Hospital for urgent medical treatment.

On 4™ July 2022 officers from Croydon Police Licensing Team attended the premises, along with Kay Jones
from Croydon Council Licensing Team. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam was asked to provide information
regarding the event, he told Police that the event space upstairs had been hired for a 50 Birthday party,
with the booking being made the previous week from a female known as “Petal”. He stated that most of the
people attended were also around 50 years of age.

On viewing the upstairs event space, Police found that all tables and chairs had been removed, with white
podium tables situated around the space. These are used in nightclubs and events to maximise floor space,
whilst providing a place to put both alcoholic and non-alcoholic drinks. There was a banner stating the event
was run by Lady Petel in conjunction with another Event promoter with an instagram site shown as -

- Glass alcohol bottles littered all over the floor and were brands not normally sold by the venue.
Enquiries were made with security that were present during the event. Police were advised that this event is
held at the premises every Sunday. Security confirmed they are booked by the event organiser and not the
premises.

When Police informed Mr Nattuselvam that they believed this to be a promoted event and not a birthday
party as previously stated, he then confirmed this is a weekly event for which he takes payment of £1,000
for the use of the space only. The person hosting the event brings their own alcohol which is sold at the
premises. The premises licence holders and designated premises supervisor do not maintain any control of
these events. They do not carry out any form of risk assessment therefore not putting in any measures to
ensure the four licensing objectives are adhered to at all times, there is a requirement on the operating
schedule for the premises to inform the Metropolitan Police Service on all Promoted Events with at least 14
days’ notice, there has been no such notification received for this particular Event and countless others that
have been held at the location over the previous months.

Over the past few months, information received by Police indicates that weapons are being allowed to enter

this premises. Promoted events are becoming the main function of this premises, however the premises
licence holder seems only interested in the profit that can be made from hiring this space. His lack of

Page 92



A %

involvement in the running of these events shows he has a total disregard for the prevention of crime and
disorder licensing objective.

On Tuesday 5™ July Police licensing officers collected a working copy USB of the CCTV from VIIDO at

Croydon. A CCTV review was completed in order to try and establish what had occurred, during this viewing
process it was noted that an altercation had occurred inside the premises which was in the upper level prior
to descending the staircase. This altercation was observed on CCTV and shows a female specifically throwing
an article which appears to be a bottle towards a group. It appears that this has occurred due to two highly
intoxicated males stumbling into a group which were on their way out. It appears a female in the group may
have been knocked to the floor and reacts angrily, hence throwing the item. The evidence of the intoxication
is clear to see as these two particular males are extremely unsteady on their feet from excessive alcohol. A
further review of the CCTV from the Camera that shows the entrance area by the front doors, also
demonstrated further disorder with one customer inside the premises remove his belt and start striking at
people outside whom were trying to enter. Other males inside the premises arm themselves with bottles.
These two incidents in isolation represent offences under the Public Order Act occurring inside the premises
and further demonstrate the lack of effective control measures in place.

Public safety licensing objective —

It is clear that this premises is holding weekly promoted events, run by different event organisers. The
premises licence has a specific condition under Annex 2 of the premises licence which refers to promoted
events, and states The Metropolitan Police Service must be given 14 days notice of all forthcoming events,
and have received an MPS promotion/event risk assessment for (696) 14 days prior to the event.

Form 696 is no longer used and therefore this part of the condition would not be enforceable, however
Police would still expect 14 days notice of all promoted events. Given that Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam
lied to Police when asked about the event on Sunday 4" July 2022, he is clearly aware of this condition and
has a blatant disregard for it.

In allowing event organisers to be given the venue in its entirety, no measures are being put in place to
ensure the safety of those attending these events. The Public safety licensing objective was created to
ensure the physical safety of customers attending premises and staff on duty in those premises. Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam is aware of the risks around holding promoted events, as he had already told
Police he would not be holding anymore, yet less than 24 hours later during one of those promoted events
there have been multiple persons stabbed.

It is clear the upstairs event space is available for hire with no risk assessment and control measures put in
place, event organisers arrange their own security and therefore the premises has no control over how many
are deployed and what would happen should an event decide not to use any.

During the event held of Sunday 4" July 2022, the organiser was allowed to set up their own bar. The bar
sold alcohol by the bottle and not required measurements 25ml, 35ml or multiples of 25ml or 25ml. One of
the bottles sold was Wary and Nephew 70 cl, this is 63%vol and without adequate control measures, could
cause very high levels of intoxication. A male is seen in the CCTV footage obtained by Police using one of
these bottles as a weapon to attempt to cause serious injury to another person.

CCTV obtained from the venue for the incident that happened on 4™ July shows one of the victims is so

intoxicated he is falling into people, this could have been the trigger incident that result in his near fatal
stabbing.

Page 93



AL

Further CCTV supplied by the venue shows these promoted events have been running every Sunday evening
through June 2022 into the early hours of Monday morning. These other events through June are through
the same promoter and are the same format at we saw during the serious assault on 4*-5% july.

Public nuisance -

On 6" December 2021 a local resident applied to review the premises licence, due to ongoing noise issues
and ASB caused by patrons leaving the venue. The review was withdrawn as the premises licence holder
assured the applicant that they would put measures in place to deal with the issues.

On 20™ April 2022 at midnight, Police received a call from a local resident stating very loud music coming
from the rear of 3 Brighton Road. States music continues until 0400 hours which caller believes is a breach
of their premises licence.

On 18" May 2022 at 0127 hours, Police received a call from a local resident stating loud noise, screaming
and shouting coming from the venue.

On 25™ May 2022 at 0224 hours, Police received a call from a local resident stating the premises is playing
really loud music, this is happing 4 to 5 nights a week, when asked to turn the music down patrons have
become aggressive.

This premises is having a negative impact upon the local community, late night events are producing
excessive noise. Patrons leaving these events are causing anti-social behaviour shouting and screaming,
which affects the quality of life for local residents. A licensed premises should be seen as a community asset
and not a hindrance.

At this point in the submission, | would like to refer you to your Statement of Licensing Policy:
5.2 Crime and Disorder

5.2.1 Croydon Council is committed to reducing crime and disorder within the Borough and creating an
environment where people feel safe. 5.2.2 In addition to the requirements under the 2003 Act for the
Council to promote the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder, it also has a duty under
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in
the Borough,

5.2.3 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning entertainment, alcohol and/or
refreshment, can be a source of crime and disorder problems. 5.2.4 The Council considers that the
promotion of the Licensing Objective to prevent crime and disorder also places a responsibility on licence
holders to work in partnership to achieve this Objective.

5.3.6 Public safety issues may be addressed by the following examples of recommended management
practice being included in operating schedules, having due regard to the type of premises and/or
activities:

o effective and responsible management of premises

® provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the safety of everyone
attending the premises or event, i.e. number of door supervisors within nationally accepted standards
(and having SIA accreditation where necessary)

Page 94



LN

® appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged to secure the safety of
everyone attending the premises or event

® suitable customer-care policies for assisting lone customers taken ill or injured etc. at the premises
e provision of effective CCTV in and around premises
® provision of toughened or plastic glasses » implementation of crowd management measures 15

® regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures, appliances, systems etc. pertinent to
safety codes and standards

10.1 it is essential that licensed premises are maintained and operated so as to ensure the continued
promotion of the licensing objectives and compliance with the specific requirements of the 2003 Act and it
is the responsibility of premises licence holders and designated premises supervisors (where applicable) to
ensure this happens and that regulatory compliance is maintained. The Counci! and its partners will make
arrangements to monitor premises and take appropriate enforcement action to ensure this but
enforcement action should be considered to be the last resort and such intervention should not be
necessary where premises are operated & managed effectively.

At this point in the submission, | would like to refer you to the revised guidance under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003:

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and
other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures
effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines
that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance ~ should be seriously
considered.

The Premises Licence Holder, during a meeting with Police Licensing Officers on Monday 4™ july was given
every opportunity to present the exact circumstances of what occurred on the evening of Sunday 3™ July
2022. The Premises Licence Holder Mr NATTUSELVAM presented a false account of the Event, stating this
was not a Promoted Event and was in fact a Birthday Party, on review of the Social Media open source
Instagram account displayed on the Promotional signage still in place in the self-described Party Hall by Mr
NATTUSELVAM on police arrival, it has been established that this Venue has been a hosting for many weeks
and months previously, all without any notification or engagement with the Police. This in itself
demonstrates that the Premises Licence Holder is placing financial gain over and above Public Safety /
Prevention of Crime and Public Nuisance. Mr NATTUSELVAM has been operating countless events in the past
and profiting greatly from it, he has allowed the promotional events companies to supply the alcohol under
the hours presented in his operating schedule, with no regards to Intoxication levels and welfare.

Due to the extremely serious nature of the crime and Police having no confidence in the premises to operate
not only safety but in accordance with the licensing objectives, especially the prevention of crime and
disarder and public safety.

We therefore feel there are no other alternatives but to ask the Committee to revoke this premises licence.

I thank the Croydon Licensing Committee for its consideration of these matters and would be glad to assist
with any further enquiries they have if required.

Page 95



AT

Yours Sincerely,

PC Zoe Garrod 2801SN

Croydon Police Licensing Team

Please find below images of Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA

Front of the premises clearly showing residential premises above —

e P S,

Ariel view of the premises, image taken from google maps

Page 96



Page 97



AS

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

CJ Act 1967, 5.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and SB; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

Statement of PC2801SN Garrod...............coooveve, URN:
Age if under 18 Over18........ {if over I8 insert "over 18’} Occupation: Police Officer 200403 .............
This statement (consisting of: ..... ...... pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I

make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: PC Zoe GARROD 2801SN...........ccoooiiiecnn. Date: 18" July 2022

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

I am a Police Constable | joined the Metropolitan Police Service in February 1999. | am currently attached to
Croydon Borough Licensing Team in my role as a Licensing Officer a role | have held since April 2015. Part of my
duties within this role is to look at any incidents of serious crime and disorder and see what measures can be
put in place to ensure that no further incidents take place. There are four licensing objectives the prevention of
crime and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and protection of children from harm. As the
police we lead on the prevention of crime and disorder.

On Monday 4" July 2022 at 0700 hours | was on duty in plain clothes preforming my role as Croydon Borough
Police Licensing Officer. On checking my emails | was made aware via an email from our Central Licensing Team
that there had been a multiple stabbing at 3 Brighton Road, Croydon CAD 697/4JUL refers. In order to try and
establish full details of the incident I viewed the crime report 3820486/22. Which states that three males had
been stabbed at the location, one male had been stabbed seven times. The report stated the party had been
booked by _ Once | had collated information from CAD and the crime
report, | phoned the premises licence holder Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam and arranged that we would
attended the premises at 10:00 hours to discuss the incident in more details.

At approximately 10:05 hours | attended 3 Brighton Road, Croydon, CR2 6EA with my colleagues PS Peter Wright
and PC Chris Woods, we were also accompanied by Kay Jones from Croydon Council Licensing Team. As |
entered the premises | noticed there was blood in the foyer, and half way up the stairs. These stairs lead to an
upstairs event space which is hired for functions. | went down the steps into the restaurant area noting blood
stained bandages and tissue. | saw the premises licence holder Mr Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam and a male
who identified himself as the manager of the premises. We were led to a seating area at the back on the
restaurant where we all sat down. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam was informed by PC Chris Woods that the
meeting was not an interview but would be recorded on Body Worn Video so that we all knew what had been
said during the meeting. | confirmed that Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam was the premises licence holder and
the designated premises supervisor, | then confirmed that my name was Zoe although | am known to Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam.

I have spoken to Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam on several occasions, most recently | attended his premises on
Saturday 2™ July 2022, with PC Chris Woods in response to an email and phone call made by Mr Ravichandran
Nattuselvam. He raised concerns regarding an unlicensed music event that had taken place the previous
evening in 5 Brighton Road. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam later emailed me to thank me for my support.

Signature: e, Signature witnessed by:

[2006 07(1): MG 1(T) RESTRICTED (svhizu complete)




RESTRICTED (when completed) Bane 2 of 4
age 2 o

Continuation of Statement of ~ PC8012d Garrod .................ocooeooviviiiiiioiieeoeoeoooo

During the meeting held on 4" july | introduced the other persons present, PS Peter Wright, PC Chris Woods and
Kay Jones. | explained to Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam that we were at the premises to establish what had
happened during the incident and how we could move forward. | asked what the event was and Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam told me it was a 50" Birthday party, with 200 in attendance, S security were present
with the party starting at 2300 hours. He confirmed the licenced hours were until 0230 hours. Mr Ravichandran
Nattuselvam was asked to explain what had happened he stated that everyone was going out smoothly, nothing
was wrong then suddenly he heard a big noise, he couldn’t see anything, and all security were at the front of
the door. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam stated that the male was stabbed at the door.

I asked if there was a camera outside, this was confirmed. The manager then stated he had viewed the CCTV, so
I therefore asked him what happened, he stated that at 0230 hours the lights were switched on, people started
slowly moving out, some people came from outside to inside. He stated two people were stabbed inside. Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam was asked if the people who had stabbed the victim had been inside the premises,
he stated no, then changed his answer to maybe. He confirmed the three victims had all been in the premises
at the party.

PC Woods asked if the people with the knives had been in the premises, the manager stated he would need to
check the CCTV. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam stated they ran away outside for two or three minutes then
came back in, so could of got something from their car. This conflicted his earlier answer where he stated the
suspect had not been in the premises.

I'asked Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam what information would be needed to book at event, he stated that as
this event was a birthday party so no risk assessment was needed but he did take details of the security. When
asked if he had booked the security or the lady who's birthday it was Petel - Mr Ravichandran
Nattuselvam confirmed she had booked her own security. He stated that he recommended the security but it
had been booked by Petel - I asked to see the security records of the SIA door supervisors deployed for
the birthday party. | was given a piece of paper with hand written names and SIA numbers, along with the name
Junior and a phone number, | was advised he was the security company.

PS Peter Wright confirmed with the manager that he had seen two stabbing movements inside the door, this
was confirmed and the manager stated he would show us the CCTV. He was asked if he recognised the two
victims as guests that were here that night, again this was confirmed.

After receiving the information from Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam and the manager, | explained that the
current premises licence was not fit for purpose as it did not have adequate measures to address the prevention
of crime and disorder licensing objective. | explained that the Sunday events had caused such issues with the
local residents that earlier in the year (| now know this to be December 2021) one of them had started a review
of the premises licence. | explained to him that he had previously said that he would not hold any more of these
events, he stated that he contacted the woman and asked to carry on these until 17t July 2022. 1assumed he
meant the resident who had started the review. He then stated he would be carrying on the events until 17t
July 2022, then would notify Croydon Council that he would not be holding any more. It was explained that
some action would be needed to address Police concerns following this multiple stabbing.

I explained to him that it had been a problematic premises especially around noise and the Sunday events. And
confirmed that during our visit on Saturday 2" July 2022 PC Woods had raised concerns around the people
attending those events and he had told us that the premises was no longer holding those events.

Signature: e Signature witnessed by: ... S

2003(1)

Page 99




RESTRICTED (when completed) Pave 3 of 4
age3 o

Continuation of Statement of PC801zd Garrod

I explained to Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam that anyone now wishing to apply for a new premises licence with
late hours such as those on his premises, would have at least 30 conditions relating to the prevention of crime
and disorder which would include an ID scanner, metal detecting wands, dispersal policies.

It was explained to Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam that a review of the premises licence would be applied for
once we had viewed the CCTV, and that it would either be a fast time summary review in which we would ask
for suspension as an interim step or a standard review in which would ask that the premises remains solely as a
restaurant. The type of review would be decided upon our findings. | explained that these events had been
problematic for a number of years, and there are not enough measures in place to ensure they are run safely. It
was explained that the premises are taking bookings solely on good will without carrying out checks and putting
in adequate control measures, to ensure they know who is booking the event space and what it will be used for.

PS Wright asked Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam who provided the DJ, he confirmed people bring their own DJ
and solely hire the room. PS Wright asked if the premises just provide the alcohol and the food, this was
confirmed. PS Wright asked if he recorded the details of the D)’s and if any checks are carried out, he confirmed
he did not record the details or does not do any checks on DJ's performing at the premises. | asked Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam if food had been served during the event, he confirmed it had been. PC Woods
asked if Petel was the lady who's birthday it was, he confirmed yes she was, PC Woods asked if the guests were
a similar age, he confirmed they were and only the victims were young. PC Woods asked if the victims had gate
crashed the party, he confirmed they were invited guests.

I asked Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam to confirm he was on the premises during the party. | then raised
concerns that he had other events booked and how did he know they were not linked to this event, as the police
investigation was ongoing and the suspects for this incident remained outstanding. He stated he did not want
to hold these events anymore although they would continue until 17t July 2022.

I asked Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam when Petel booked her birthday party, he stated the previous week. |
told him this did not allow time for a risk assessment and a birthday party should be booked with plenty of
notice given the person would know the date of their own birthday.

PS Wright states that three people were stabbed in the facility of the business,this was a birthday party with 200
people, it was only booked last week and she was asked to provide her own security. PS Wright raised concerns
regarding people arriving at the premises without security. With only a weeks’ notice you are unable to do due
diligence and a risk assessment. PS Wright stated the need for Police to have confidence that this premises is
going to run in line with objectives under the licensing act, the current conditions are not in line with the events
that you want to run.

PC Woods asked if there had been any incident in the premises prior to the stabbing, any disagreement a
scuffle. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam says nothing happened in premises prior to the GBH.

I explained that our actions would depend of the findings of the CCTV, PC Trayling from our VIDDO unit who was
in attendance obtaining CCTV for the officers leading the investigation, explained that there was no outside
camera. The manager stated that the outside camera was not working, when asked when it had stopped
working, he stated Saturday morning. Therefore no CCTV footage from outside the premises could be viewed.

After our conversation | went upstairs to look at the event space, the area was littered with bottles and plastic
cups. All tables and chairs had been removed and white light up podium tables were in place either side of the
room. These podiums are used to places alcohol drinks on. There was a banner advising the event as Lady

Signature: . Signature witnessed by:

2003(1) Page 100



RESTRICTED (when completed) NI
aged o

Continuation of Statement of =~ PC801Zd GArrod ...........c..oocoooovvvvmiiriiovieeioeoeooeoooo

Petel, on viewing the room it was clear that the event had been a promoted event and not a 50" Birthday party
as we had been lead to believe.

To try and establish what had happened | phoned Junior using the phone number provided to me by Mr
Ravichandran Nattuselvam. Junior stated that this was a weekly event held at the premises, he and his security
team were booked and paid for by Lady Petel. When asked how the incident had happened, he stated that an
altercation had started upstairs at about 0220 hours, as a result the music was turned off 5 minutes later and
patrons asked to leave. A further commotion happened on the stairs, the victim came outside, bottles were
thrown and the main victim was stabbed in the door way. At which point he was half in and half out of the
premises. Junior stated that they had searched everyone entering the premises and he had tried to stop the
suspects getting into the venue.

ft was then clear the Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam had lied to Police about the nature of the event, this is a
weekly promoted event, in which the premises is given solely to an individual they are allowed to bring their
own alcohol. No control measures are put in place regarding Challenge 25 and training of bar staff in regards to
intoxication levels and vulnerable persons.

No control measures were put in place to ensure on incident of this nature did not happen at the premises.

Having looked on social media | found a flyer advertising this event which I exhibit as ZPG/1.

Signature: e, Signature witnessed by: ...

- Page 101



I D BN N BN B OB B BE DD O En BN B "ﬁ
RESTRICTED (when complete)

T T .

B OB S N ey N

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.58

URN [

Statement of: PC Woods
Age if under 18: 0/18 (ifover 18insert 'over 18)  Occupation: Police Officer p215834

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in
it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

WItness Signature: ... ... e, Date: 06/07/2022

I am a police officer working in the Licensing Team on Croydon Borough. This statement
refers to an incident which took place at Chennai Dosa, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon in
the early hours of Monday 4" July 2022. Chennai Dosa is a licensed Indian restaurant on the
ground floor with a separate events space/junction room on the 1% floor directly above.

On Monday 4t July | started work in Addington Police station at 0800hrs and was made
aware of a serious incident at the above venue which had resulted in three people being
stabbed.

As part of our Licensing remit our job was to visit the venue, speak with the operator/owner
about what had happened, discuss how it was able to happen, how we could help and what
if any measures were needed to stop this happening again.

| attended the venue with PS WRIGHT and PC Garrod at 1010hrs. | was also aware that PC
TRAYLING from our VIIDO team was inside the venue downloading CCTV footage for our
CID colleagues who were investigating the incident.

Whilst walking into the venue | could see a large amount of dried blood on the floor directly
inside the front door. Dried blood also covered the first 6-7 steps leading upstairs. There was
dried blood spattered on nearby walls and handrails in the entrance hall leading to the
restaurant. Inside the restaurant area we were met by the owner Mr Ravi NATTUSELVAN
and his manager Muralidaran RAM

After introductions we all made our way to the back of the venue and sat at one of the
restaurant tables. | explained to Mr NATTUSELVAN that our conversation was going to be
recorded on BWV for continuity reasons and PC GARROD started proceedings by asking for
Mr NATTUSELVAN's version of events. Mr NATTUSELVAN explained the party was for a
50™ Birthday party. The conversation lasted approximately 45mins.

After the conversation with Mr NATTUSELVAN and Mr RAM | headed upstairs into the
events space in order to gather an understanding of how the event was being run on the
night. The event space itself was accessed by a stairwell from the entrance hall, up a flight of
steps, onto a landing, then down another small flight of steps in the main function room was
large enough to hold approximately 150 comfortably. What | immediately noticed was a large
amount of rubbish all over the floor from the event. This included glass Guinness bottles,
Red Bull cans, plastic water bottles, Champagne bottles and glass bottles of Rum.

Witness Signature:

Page 1 of 2

RESTRI?’&E&@ 2omp|ete)

T I T LB BN Bn e e

LN



R IEN SR BB OEm OBD BN O BER BN FR O EE N =u R e=
RESTRICTED (when complete)

L BN BE B Ee e mm S B

Continuation of Statement of:

There were a lot of white podium tables set up and most of these has ice buckets on them
still with various botties inside. Mainly Champagne and vodka. A banner in the far corner
was advertising a promotions company called ‘Feel a Vibes, every Sunday, follow LadyPetal
& Mega_Lynx'. There was also some stands and bags with electrical lighting equipment and
some kind of collapsed structure branded as LadyPetal. It looked like a dancing podium to
me. There was no blood in the upstairs event space.

I'then went and had a look at the fire exit leading from the function room for any other signs
of disturbance. There were more bottles outside, similar to those inside but no blood. |
noticed the fire exit was blocked at the bottom by many bags of rubbish.

I recorded my findings on BWV. These recordings now include 1) the conversation with Mr

NATTUSELVAN, 2) the event space itself, 3) the stairs covered in blood, and 4) the rubbish
outside of the fire exit.

Page 2 of 2

e eSS EEEEE T
99/12 | RESTRICTED (when comnlate) I



RESTRICTED (when complete)

S T ET 0 A I I T T —g

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN j

Statement of: PC Woods
Age if under 18: 0/18 (ifover 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Police Officer p215834

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in
it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

WItNEsSS SIgNature: ... e e Date: 06/07/2022

I am a police officer working in the Licensing Team on Croydon Borough. This statement is a
follow up to my previous statement and refers to a CCTV viewing from the incident which
took place at Chennai Dosa, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon in the early hours of Monday
4" July 2022.

On Tuesday 5" July | attended our VIIDO department at Croydon Police station and
collected a working copy USB of the CCTV footage downloaded from Chennai Dosa by PC
TRAYLING.

The CCTV footage contains four different camera views from Chennai Dosa restaurant and
it's 1%t floor event space. Each camera angle provides the below view:

Camera 3 is a view of the short flight of steps at the rear of the events space leading from
the dancefloor onto the upstairs landing.

Camera § gives a view of the front door, albeit a tight angle and with limited coverage.
Camera 7 provides a view across the bar area towards the rear stairs. It also shows a lot of
the event space.

Camera 12 shows the majority of the events space and the DJ area at the opposite end to
the bar.

The CCTV footage totals about 3hrs. It has recorded timings which are approximately 1hr
behind, probably due to the winter/summer timings not being changed. This has been
confirmed, meaning a recorded time of 12 midnight is actually nearer 0100hrs. The footage
does not have sound. | will refer to the actual believed timings forthwith in this statement
instead of the times shown on CCTV recordings.

Having now viewed large sections of the CCTV footage | have a good idea of the events
leading up to the incident which involved 3 persons being stabbed.

During the evening the events space begins to fill up from about 0100. The bar area was
busy throughout. The footage provides evidence that all drinks were being supplied over the
bar. These included glass botties of Champagne, spirits, Guinness, Red Bull and plastic
water bottles.

There are various white podium drinks tables which light up. There does not appear to be
any seating, just a dance floor area.

The crowd numbers continue to grow until the event appears to finish just after 0230hrs. At
it's busiest | would estimate the number of customers would total around 200 people.
WItNess SIgnature: ... e

Page 1 of 2

e e e




N _El ED BN 5RO BN DR B B OB SR = o] Q’ Qr
RESTRICTED (when complete)

L T L

Continuation of Statement of:

It is at this time people start to leave the event via the stairs leading from the dance floor
towards the upper landing which in turn leads to the stairs downstairs to the front door.

At approximately 0245hrs an IC3 male with dreadlocks who | now believe is later the victim
of seven stab wounds begins to climb the stairs to leave the venue. Whilst on the landing he
embraces another IC3 male with short cropped hair and a black shirt. The two males due to
their level of intoxication appear to then stumble into another group of customers who are
also leaving. Within seconds an altercation breaks out at the top of the stairs, the two males
retreat back down the stairs towards the dancefloor and a female is seen to then throw what
appears to be a bottle at them. There is a small scuffle around the stairs and then the
customers start leaving again. At this point it does not appear that anyone is hurt. | believe
the scuffle had started due to some females being pushed/knocked over by this drunk pair.

A few minutes later at the front entrance a large fight takes place. The same male with the
dreadlocks is seen to stumble into view, presumably as he has lost his footing on the stairs.
At this time, 0149hrs it is clear some of the males who had previously left are then trying to
get back in. A security guard does his best to keep the glass door closed but he is over
powered and all parties come to blows of the door threshold. The security guard disappears
out onto the pavement. The male from earlier in the black shirt is seen swinging his belt
towards the outside attackers and others inside the venue are seen arming themselves with
glass bottles.

During the melee the dreadlocked male spills through the door onto the immediate curtilage
of the venue outside and reappears with seconds and has clearly been stabbed. Blood is
visibly dripping onto the floor inside the premises as he is helped back in and taken away
from the front door. A male from outside is then immediately seen lunging inside the venue
with a large knife/machete. This lasts for a couple of seconds before he disappears from
view.

A security guard then re-appears and brings order to the front door. A black sofa is placed in
front of the glass door and the fight has finished.

Page 2 of 2

‘B RESTRICTED (when compiete)




A

MEGA, LADY %YAL & BURRU PRESENTS

LR ORI

BAGGA BRITISH

mmwanmum

[ 3 ERICHTON ROAD, CR2Z GEA

i _v. a 5
PR e
o ¢
- ’

LADIES FREE BEFORE 1100
£10 ON THE DOOR | DOORS OPEN 5PM TILL 2:30AM
ORESSCODE; NO TRACKSUITS
AA‘ + 360 PHOTO BOOTH & SNAPCHAT FILTER
L Sl MUSIC POLICY €S & 90'S
g  FROM MORE INFO; 07533 646 926

Page 106



f B

12. Summary reviews

12.1

12.2

Summary reviews can be undertaken when the police consider that the premises
concerned are associated with serious crime or serious disorder (or both). The summary
review process, set out under sections 53A-53D of the 2003 Act, allows interim
conditions to be quickly attached to a licence and a fast track licence review. The
provisions were inserted by section 21 of the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 and

amended by sections 136-137 of the Policing and Crime Act 2017, including the addition
of section 53D.

The powers apply only where a premises licence authorises the sale of alcohol. They do
not apply in respect of other premises licences, or to premises operating under a club
premises certificate. The powers are aimed at tackling serious crime and serious
disorder, in particular (but not exclusively) the use of guns and knives. The powers
complement the general procedures in the 2003 Act for tackling crime and disorder
associated with licensed premises and should be reserved for the most serious matters
which cannot be adequately or otherwise redressed unless urgent action is taken.
Separate powers in the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 provide for
the instant closure of premises by the police in some circumstances (in essence,
disorder or nuisance). The consequent review of premises licences by the licensing
authority is provided for by section 167 of the Licensing At 2003.

Application for summary review

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Section 53A of the 2003 Act sets out who may apply for an expedited review and the
circumstances in which it can be used. The application is made by, or on behalf of, the
chief officer of police and must be made in the form which is set out in Schedule 8A to

the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations
2005 (S12005/42).

The completed application must be accompanied by a certificate issued by a senior
officer of the rank of superintendent or above. The certificate is a formal note which
identifies the licensed premises and includes a signed statement by the senior officer
that in his/her opinion the premises are associated with serious crime, serious disorder
or both. This form is not prescribed in legislation. However, a sample form which forces
may wish to adopt is published on gov.uk.

The tests to determine the kinds of conduct that amount to serious crime are set out in

section 81(2) and (3) of the Regulation of investigatory Powers Act 2000. Those tests
are that the conduct:

(a) constitutes an offence for which a person who is 21 years of age or over with no

previous convictions could reasonably be expected to be sentenced to imprisonment for
3 years or more; or

(b) Involves the use of violence, results in substantial financial gain or is conduct by a
large number of persons in pursuit of a common purpose.

There is no definitive list of behaviours that constitute serious disorder, and the matter is
one for judgment by the local police. The phrase should be given its plain, ordinary

meaning, as is the case under section 12 of the Public Order Act 1986 in which it is also
used.

Revised Gmcp‘agésu&wder section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 85



12.7

12.8

12.9

In deciding whether to sign a certificate, the senior officer should consider the following
(as applicable):

» The track record of the licensed premises concerned and whether the police have
previously had cause to give advice about serious criminal or disorderly conduct (or
the likelihood of such conduct) attributable to activities taking place on the premises.
It is not expected that this power will be used as a first response to a problem and
summary reviews triggered by a single incident are likely to be the exception.

+ The nature of the likely crime and/or disorder — is the potential incident sufficiently
serious to warrant using this power?

+ Should an alternative power be deployed? Is the incident sufficiently serious to
warrant use of the powers in Part 4, Chapter 3 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014, or section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016,
to close the premises? Or could the police trigger a standard licence review to
address the problem? Alternatively, could expedited reviews be used in conjunction
with other powers (for example, modifying licence conditions following the use of a
closure power)?

+ What added value will use of the expedited process bring? How would any interim
steps that the licensing authority might take effectively address the problem?

It is recommended that these points are addressed in the chief officer's application to
the licensing authority. In particular, it is important to explain why other powers or
actions are not considered to be appropriate. It is up to the police to decide whether to
include this information in the certificate or in section 4 of the application for summary
review. The police will also have an opportunity later to make representations in relation
to the full review. In appropriate circumstances the police might want to make
representations to the licensing authority suggesting that they modify the conditions of
the premises licence to require searches of customers for offensive weapons upon
entry. Under the powers in sections 53A to 53D, this could be done on an interim basis
pending a full hearing of the issues within the prescribed 28-day timeframe or for an
appropriate period determined by the licensing authority.

Similarly, the power could, where appropriate, be used to reduce the risk of injury
caused by glass by requiring the adoption of a safer alternative (but see paragraphs
12.15 and 12.16 below). However, it should always be borne in mind that the aim of the
powers is to provide a selective tool, to be used proportionately.

The licensing authority and interim steps pending the review

12.10 Within 48 hours of receipt of the chief officer’s application, the licensing authority must

12.11

give the premises licence holder and responsible authorities a notice of the review and
should include a copy of the application for review and a copy of the certificate, and
must also consider whether it is necessary to take interim steps (place temporary
conditions on the licence). When calculating the 48 hour period any non-working day
can be disregarded*’.

The licensing authority may want to consult the police about the steps that it thinks are

"' This means that, for example, if the application was received at 3pm on a Friday, the 48 hour period would cover the
remaining 9 hours on that Friday and the remaining 39 hours starting on the Monday morning (provided it was not a bank
holiday). In this case the licensing authority would have to decide on interim steps by 3pm on the Tuesday.

96 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 p&g@:eﬂ% Act 2003



12.12

12.13

12.14

12.15

12.16

Ay
Wit

necessary, pending the determination of the review, to address the immediate problems
with the premises, in particular the likelihood of serious crime and/or serious disorder.
The licensing authority may consider the interim steps without the holder of the
premises licence having been given an opportunity to make representations. This does
not, of course, mean that the licensing authority cannot afford such an opportunity if it
thinks it appropriate and feasible to do so in all the circumstances.

The determination of interim steps is not a matter that may be delegated to an officer of
the licensing authority. The relevant decisions are likely to be taken by a licensing sub-
committee rather than the full committee. It should also be noted that there is no
requirement for a formal hearing in order to take interim steps. This means that the
relevant sub committee members can communicate by telephone or other remote
means in order to reach a decision. A written record should always be produced as
soon as possible after a decision is reached.

The interim steps that the licensing authority must consider taking are:

+ the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

* the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence;
+ the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence; and
+ the suspension of the licence.

Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the alteration or
modification of existing conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that
restrict the times at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place.

If the licensing authority decides to take steps at the initial interim stage:

* the decision takes effect immediately, or as soon after it as the licensing authority
directs; but

+ the licensing authority must give immediate notice of its decision and its reasons for
doing so to the holder of the premises licence and the chief officer of police who
made the application. The 2003 Act does not specify that the immediate notice has to
be in writing. However, in an individual case the licensing authority may consider that
the need for immediate communication at least initially requires a non-written
approach, such as a telephone call. This may happen when, for example, the
authority decides that the decision should have immediate effect. In such a case, the
decision and the reasons for it should be explained clearly and in full to the licence-
holder (or someone who may properly act for the licence-holder), and the call
followed up as soon as possible with a written version of the decision and the
reasons (for example, by email or fax) which is identical to, or not significantly
different from, the version given by telephone.

The licensing authority, in deciding when its decision on interim steps should take effect,
should consider the practical implications of compliance in relation to the premises. For
example to comply with a modification of the conditions of a licence that requires
employment of door supervisors, those running the premises may need some time to
recruit appropriately qualified and accredited staff.

In addition, very careful consideration needs to be given to interim steps which would
require significant cost or permanent or semi-permanent adjustments to premises which
would be difficult to remove if the outcome of the subsequent full review was to withdraw

Revised Guid@n&gi@u}@@der section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 97



Ay

e
or modify those steps. For example, making structural changes, installing additional
CCTV or replacing all glassware with safer alternatives may be valid steps, but might be
disproportionate if they are not likely to be deemed necessary following the full review
(or any subsequent appeal). The focus for interim steps should be on the immediate
measures that are necessary to prevent serious crime or serious disorder occurring.

Making representations against the interim steps

12.47

12.18

12.19

12.20

12.21

The premises licence holder may make representations against the interim steps taken
by the licensing authority. There is no time limit for the premises licence holder to make
representations on the interim steps, although in practice this would at some point be
superseded by the full review which would have to be completed within 28 days of the
application being received by the licensing authority. On receipt of such representations,
the licensing authority must (if the representations are not withdrawn) hold a hearing
within 48 hours of their receipt. When calculating the 48 hour period, any non-working
day can be disregarded. Where the licensing authority has already held a hearing to
consider representations against the interim steps, the holder of the licence may only
make further representations if there has been a material change in circumstances.

The licensing authority must give advance notice of the hearing to the premises licence
holder and the chief officer of police. Given that these measures are designed to deal
with serious crime and/or serious disorder on an interim basis only, the process is
designed to avoid delay and, as such, significant portions of the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (S1 2005/44) (which set out the usual processes governing
the conduct of licensing authority hearings) do not apply in order to streamline the
hearing process. One result of this is that the licensing authority cannot adjourn the
hearing to a later date if the licence holder fails to attend at the scheduled time, as is the
case under the normal review procedure. And as is the case with that procedure, the
licence holder does not have to be present for the hearing to take place. In addition,
there is no timescale for notifying the licence holder of the hearing under the modified
process, providing the notification takes place before the hearing is held. However, it is
imperative that the licence holder be given as much notice as is possible in the
circumstances to afford the holder a maximum practicable opportunity to prepare for
and attend the hearing. Licensing authorities should bear in mind that the usual
principles of public law decision-making will apply to interim determinations, in a form
that has regard to the statutory context of an expedited process.

At the hearing to consider representations against interim steps the licensing authority
must:

+ consider whether the interim steps are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; and

+ determine whether to withdraw or modify the steps taken.
When considering the case the licensing authority must take into account:

+ the senior officer's certificate that accompanied the application;
+ the chief officer's representations (if any); and
+ any representations made by the premises licence holder.

There is no right of appeal to a magistrates’ court against the licensing authority's

98 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 Bagecéﬁy@ Act 2003



Ay
v

decision at this stage.

The review of the premises licence under section 53C

12.22

12.23

12.24

12.25

12.26

The licensing authority must hold a full review of the premises licence and determine the
review within 28 days after the day of receipt of the chief officer’s application. There can
be no adjournment of the hearing or delay in reaching a determination beyond the end
of the 28 day period. This must take place even if the chief officer asks to withdraw his
application or representations. At the review hearing, the licensing authority must
consider what steps are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives taking
into account any change in circumstances since any interim steps were imposed,
consider any relevant representations, and review the interim steps already taken (if
any).

In making its final determination the steps the licensing authority can take are:

* the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

* the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

* the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence:

* the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and
+ the revocation of the licence.

Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the alteration or
modification of existing conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that
restrict the times at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place.

The licensing authority must:

* advertise the review inviting representations from any persons for no less than seven
consecutive days, by notice as described in regulation 38 of the Licensing Act 2003
(Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 (S| 2005/42)
and, if applicable, on the licensing authority’s website (see regulation 38(1)(b) of the
above). The relevant notices should be published on the day after the day of receipt
of the chief officer's application.

* advertise that any representations which the premises licence holder, responsible
authority or any other person want the licensing authority to consider at the review
hearing, should be submitted to the licensing authority within 10 working days of the
advertisement of the review appearing.

* give formal notice of the hearing no later than five working days before the day or first
day on which the hearing is to be held to the premises licence holder and to every
responsible authority.

A party shall give to the licensing authority a notice no later than two working days
before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held stating -

* whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing;

*» whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary.

* whether he would like permission for any other person (other than the person he
intends to represent him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing and, if so, explain on
which points that person will be able to contribute.

Revised Gui@&gi@su}ﬂ_@pder section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 99



AY
iy

12.27 The regulations relating to hearings are set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)

Regulations 2005 (S.I. 2005/44). They apply to final hearings under the section
53A(2)(b) in a similar way to hearings following closure orders under section 167 of the
2003 Act (it should be emphasised that the truncated version of the hearings regulations
described in paragraph 12.18 above applies to interim hearings only). The issues they
address include who can make representations and what those representations can be
about. It is therefore possible for responsible authorities or any other persons to make
representations in relation to any of the licensing objectives, not just crime and disorder.
Similarly, where it is in the public interest, the regulations relating to the exclusion of
individuals from hearings, or conducting the hearing in private, will apply.

12.28 The licensing authority must notify its decision and the reasons for making it to:

+ the holder of the premises licence;
+ any person who made relevant representations; and
+ the chief officer of police who made the original application.

Review of the interim steps under section 53D

12.29

12.30

The licensing authority’s determination does not have effect until the end of the 21 day
period given for appealing the decision, or until the disposal of any appeal that is lodged
(see below information on right of appeal). To ensure that there are appropriate and
proportionate safeguards in place at all times, the licensing authority is required to
review any interim steps that it has taken that are in place on the date of the hearing
and consider whether it is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives for
the steps to remain in place, or if they should be modified or withdrawn. The review of
the interim steps should take place immediately after the determination under section
53C has been reached. In making its decision, the licensing authority must consider any
relevant representations made.

In conducting the review of the interim steps the licensing authority has the power to
take any of the steps that were available to it at the initial stage (see paragraph 12.13).
Any interim steps taken at the review hearing apply until—

(a) the end of the period given for appealing against a decision made under section 53C
(21 days),

(b) if the decision under section 53C is appealed against, the time the appeal is
disposed of, or

(c) the end of a period determined by the relevant licensing authority (which may not be
longer than the period of time for which such interim steps could apply under (a) or (b)
above).

Right of appeal against review of interim steps decision

12.31

The licence holder or the chief officer of police may appeal against the decision made
by the licensing authority concerning its review of the interim steps to a magistrates’
court. The appeal must be made within 21 days of the appeliant being notified of the
licensing authority’s decision and must be heard in full by the magistrates’ court within
28 days beginning with the day on which the appellant lodged the appeal.

100 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182ﬂ§1§gcirii? Act 2003



Right of appeal against final review decision Al
12.32  An appeal against the final review decision may be made to a magistrates’ court within
21 days of the appellant being notified of the licensing authority's determination on the

review. An appeal may be made by the premises licence holder, the chief officer of
police and/or any other person who made relevant representations.

12.33 The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have effect
until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the disposal of the appeal.

12.34 Where appeals are lodged both against the decision following the review of the interim
steps and against the final determination, the courts may decide to consider the appeal
against the final determination within the 28 day period, allowing the interim steps
appeal to be disposed of at the same time.

Flow diagram of the summary review process

12.35 The following flow diagram summarises the process.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 101

Page 113



UOIBUIULLIB)eP
leuty

€00z 19V Buisuaoi sy} Jo Zg| UOHDSS J3pUN PANSS| BOUBPING PasiAay | 2oL

1unod shep Bupiom Aup %
Auoyjne Buisuaol .

‘abeys yoea 1e Ajuoyjne Buisuady Ag apew suoisiap uo buipuadap ‘jou op Jo ‘anuiuod sdals wudU|

l

"sAep gz uiym
HNOD sajesisibey
Aq piesy si sdajs

wuaui Jsuiebe

jeadde Auy

‘(sda)s wusul
H6uinunuos jsuiebe
|jeadde Aue yym
uonounfuod ul pay
ag Aeuwt Inq) ¥NOD
Aq papioap Buiw
‘unod saessibepy
Aq pieay

UOISIDaP MBIABI
jsulebe |eadde Auy

.......... [ S

‘(sAep

1T ulypm) sdajs
wuajui buinunuos
jsuiebe jeadde
0sje ued Japjoy
90U32|| pue 321|0d

‘(shep Lz uiym)
UOIS[I9P MBINSY
ysuiebe |eadde 0}
saised jje Jo 1wbiy

‘(poMad 1Y)
Buunp pajeadde
ssajun) shep g
FENERLENEREN])]
UOISIOBp MBINTY

aq pjnoys aoeid ui
sda)s wusju! Aue

82 ulynm buuesy
Iiny ploy isnw v

‘payipow
1O UMBIPYIM

Jayjaym apioap
pue a2uadj|
sosiwald ay
Mmainal 0} sAep

(eoue)SwnouD

ut abueyd
|euajew e si
8431} SS8|UN BOUO
Ajuo) sanpoalqo
Buisuaoy

ay) jo uonowoud
ayy Joj sjeudoidde
ale sdais

Wau JaYlaym
19pIsu0d 0}

¢ SINOY gy UILIM
Buneay spioy v

HEUOMO|} MalAS] AleWling

J1apjoy aouaoi]

avl

Joj uoediddy

4
—
—
e
w
x A
. ! o
. [}
X |
1 - - =
a i '
[ 1 )
Ly, - Sy )
" !
m ‘(uoneondde
e ' Buiniadal
" X jo . sinoy ‘(anoqe Jo
‘ ! 8P uyum apusjuuadns)
R N 2q isnw) 139440
m ] 'sdajls sda)s wuaul Joiuss Aq paubis
' wuslisulebe o).} 0 =] IFER)
' 1 suopejuasasdal Alessaoau S| UIM ‘MBIADI
- ayew ued 11 JI S19PISU0D Arewuwns
' [l




CROYDON

www croydon gov uk

PREMISES LICENCE

Premises licence number = 05/02425/LIPREM I

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description including Post Town and Post Code

Aachis Masala Chennai
3 Brighton Road

South Croydon

CR2 6EA

Telephone 0208 680 8833

number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

N/A

Licensable activities and entertainment authorised by the licence
The provision of regulated entertainment namely:-

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Live music

Recorded music

Performance of dance

Anything of a similar description to live music, recorded music and the
performance of dance

provision of facilities for making music

e provision of facilities for dancing

provision of facilities for entertainment of a similar description to making music and
dancing.

Page | 1
Licence no: 05/02425/LIPREM Page 115
Date Effective from: 01.08.2019



G
g

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 02:00

Provision of Regulated Entertainment
Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 02:00

Regulated entertainment, namely recorded music, may be provided throughout the
premises without restriction on times

Regulated entertainment, namely music and dancing or any other entertainment of the
like kind, may be offered at the premises for pre booked private events, for pre invited
guests, without restriction on times.

Provision of Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday 23:00 to 02:30

Non-Standard Timings — For all of the above

On the morning on which British Summer Time begins the terminal hour shall be 03:00
hours.

Christmas Eve and Boxing Day 10:00 hours until 04:00 hours on the following days
New Year's Eve, from the end of the permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of
the permitted hours New Year's Day or, if there are no permitted hours on New Year's
Day, until the end of the normal permitted hours for the day on which New Year's eve
falls.

On 12 occasions during the year the applicant may extend the terminal hour for events
held within the premises, with the police having an absolute veto on such events.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 02:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on
and/or off supplies

Both

Part 2

Pageg 116



Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of
holder of premises licence

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)
N/A

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam

TEE

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol

Personal Licence No:05/01946/LIPERS

Licensing Authority: London borough of Croydon

Date Original Licence Granted: 06.09.2005

Date This Licence Effective: 01.08.2019

Licensing Manager
Place Department

Pa:ge 117

as



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

The licence is granted subject to the Mandatory conditions for sale of alcohol as set
out in the Licensing Act 2003 as amended by the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 and Order 2014.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence,

or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or
his personal licence is suspended.

2. - Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure the staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purposes of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to -
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcoho! sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person
is authorised to sell or supply alcoho!), or

(if) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcoho! free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner
which carries a significant risk to undermine a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcoho! in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamourise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner,

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

4. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonable available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply
of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy)to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either -

Page 118

aAg



(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

In respect of the condition governing age verification, there are specific duties relating
respectively to the holder of the premises licence or club premises certificate and designated
premises supervisor.

6. The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measure -

(i) beer or cider: ¥ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iit) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures and displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available."

*Responsible person is defined as:
(a) In relation to licensed premises:
(1) The holder of a premises licence in respect of the premises,
(if) The designated premises supervisor (if any) under such a licence, or
(iii) Any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised for the purposes of section (4)
of the Licensing Act 2003 by such a holder or supervisor,
(b) In relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member of officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables him to prevent the supply in question.

7.1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2). For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979.

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - P =D + (D x V)
where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D isthe amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iit) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of alcohol;

(c) "relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force
a premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force

a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

P&ge 119



AS
ey

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

3). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest
penny.

4) - (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

8(1) . Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more

individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual
must:-

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

(2). But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:-

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to:-

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being
used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice
authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act.

(3. For the purposes of this section:-

(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule
applies, and, which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of
that Act) and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies
as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Pag% 120



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operational schedule
Prevention of Crime and Disorder
The premises licence holder shall:
1. Employ SIA registered door supervisors at the premises on Friday and Saturday nights
when any event is booked for the first floor
2. Provide a closed circuit television system to cover the entrance and internal public areas,
all to the satisfaction of the local police crime prevention officer, with recorded tapes kept by
the DPS for not less than 28 days and made available in useable form to police and Council
officers on request.
3. Comply with all reasonable requests of the Metropolitan Police crime prevention officer.
5. Promoted Events -
The Metropolitan Police Service must be given at least 14 days’ notice of all
forthcoming events and have received an MPS Promotion/Event Risk Assessment

(Form 696) 14 days in advance of any event

The Metropolitan Police Service must receive an MPS Debrief Promotion/Even Risk
Assessment (Form 696A) three days after any risk assessed event.

Sufficient SIA registered door supervisors, as agreed with the Metropolitan Police,
shall be employed at the premises at any promoted event

6. No 18th birthday party bookings will be accepted.

Public Safety
None

Prevention of Public Nuisance
None

Protection of Children from Harm
None
Annex 3 -~ Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Not Applicable

Annex 4 - Plans

Due to the size of the plans in respect of this premises, it has not been possible to reproduce
them in this space. However, for the avoidance of doubt, the authorised layout of the
premises is as shown on drawing as submitted to the licensing authority in support of the
application. Original copies of the plan(s) are held on file by the licensing authority, and may
be inspected at our offices on appointment.

Pa{ge 121

E



Representation to support the Review brought by Metropolitan Police Licensing for:

Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon CR2 6EA

Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam applied for the licence to be transferred in April 2019.
There are two Premises Holders on the licence, Mr Ravichandran Nattuseivam and
Mr Aravindaiah Priyadharshan Rajarajan. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam is the
Designated Premises Supervisor.

On Monday 4 July 2022, | visited the premises with the police licensing team after an
incident that had occurred at the premises at approximately 02:45 hrs that same
morning.

Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam confirmed that the first floor of the premises had been
hired out for a 50™ Birthday Party. He had made a note of the person who made the
booking. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam stated that the attendees of the party were
of a similar age of around 50 years old.

Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam had recommended SlAs to the hirer and stated that 5
had been on duty during the party, the names and telephone numbers were made
available to the police licensing team. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam confirmed that
the number of guests was approximately 200 with the party commencing at
23:00hrs.

CCTV had been recording. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam confirmed that the camera
positioned outside of the premises stopped working on Friday 1 July and he states
that this was reported it to a private maintenance company.

Upon walking around the premises, it became evident the hirer was not as an
individual, but was a promoter who had brought along their own drinking podiums
and promotional material.

There were several safety issues within the premises which gave concern and |
spoke with the London Fire Brigade. These included:

3 locations where fire extinguishers were removed from the wall and were
subsequently located in a locked room.

1 fire escape blocked internally with black bags of rubbish. This was the escape
route from the first level to the ground.

1 fire escape blocked outside by a large amount of cardboard, building materials, oil

and other rubbish which was collectively from several businesses over approximately
100 meters.

Page 122

A6



A L

Breach of licensing conditions:
Annex 2, Condition 5
Promoted Events —

The Metropolitan Police Service must be given at least 14 day’s notice of all
forthcoming events and have received an MPS Promotion/Event Risk Assessment
(Form 696) 14 days in advance of any event.

The Metropolitan Police have advised that they had not received any notification
from the premises regarding promotional events.

The non-compliance of conditions are compromising the Public Safety and
Public Nuisance Objectives which are detailed on the following pages.

Public Safety Objectives:

The event was held without adequate checks of the person hiring the premises and it
was subsequently noted that the same person had hired the venue for a number of
promotional events over several Sunday evenings.

CCTV footage showed the guests to be approximately 20s to 30s in age which is
contrary to the information provided. Mr Ravichandran Nattuselvam did not appear to
have put in place any additional security checks or measures and appears to have
wholly handed control of his premises over to a promoter.

Safety issues within the premises regarding escape routes and missing fire
extinguishers have been passed to FSR (Fire Safety Regulations), who are part of
LFB (London Fire Brigade). They will conduct their own investigation based on the
information provided.

Kay Jones

Croydon Council

Environmental Health Practitioner / Licensing Compliance
Sustainable Communities

Food & Safety Team

6 Floor, Zone A

Bernard Weatherill House

8 Mint Walk

Croydon CRO 1EA

Page 123



Pollution Team,
Sustainable Communities
Floor 6, Zone A

Bernard Weatherill House,
8 Mint Walk,

Croydon, CR0O 1EA
poliution@croydon.gov.uk

Licence Representation

This representation is made by the Pollution Team as a responsible authority
under the Licensing Act 2003.

It concerns issues relating to the prevention of public nuisance.

Details of this representation

This representation is intended to provide additional information to the
Licensing Committee about the Pollution Teams involvement with Aachis
Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road South Croydon CR2 6EA.

Complaints about noise from the premises:

Since 27/09/2021, we have received a large number of complaints from 7
different local residents about the premises.

September 2021

First complaint received from complainant 1 claiming that the venue was
holding loud parties on Sunday Night/Monday Morning.

October 2021

An investigating officer visited the restaurant and spoke to a manager about
the complaint. The manager was happy for the officer to pass on the owner's
mobile number to complainants so they could call direct when they are
affected by the restaurant. This way they could see how the music/parties
were affecting local residents and may help the poliution team as we don't
have an out of hour's service anymore.

November 2021
The team received another complaint from Complainant 1 in November 2021

December 2021

| emailed complainant 1 in early December 2021 to see how things had been.
Complainant 1 said it had improved but there had been a couple instances
where they had been disturbed by the restaurant. | was aware that they could
email licensing to ask about a possible review of their license/operation hours.

Page 124



AL

April 2022

The team did not hear anything else until late April 2022 and then more
complainants were coming in from mid May 2022.

May 2022

The team had another 4 residents from different households complain to us
about the restaurant.

| received an email from police licensing to say that this site will be added to
their list for a visit. | received further emails to say that this site was not
visited. | asked if it could be as it's tough for us to witness anything with no out
of hour's service.

June 2022

The pollution team received another complaint from the manager of a
residential living home opposite the restaurant on Brighton Road. The
manager was concerned with the behaviour of patrons and the parties being
held at Chennai. The manager highlighted that residents were being disturbed
at all hours of night into morning, patrons were parking in their private car
park, staff from the restaurant were parking their car park, cars were blocking
entrances, littering, urinating, vehicles beeping horns and general screaming,
shouting & arguments. The manager had already had a meeting with the
owner to express concerns.

An investigating officer visited Chennai on 28" June 2022 to speak to the
owner. The owner was not there, staff were asked to contact the officer to
discuss the issues.

July 2022

An investigating officer visited the residential living home on Friday 15t July
2022 and met the manager who spoke about the recent disturbances.
Residents showed video footage of patrons outside making noise and pictures
of cars blocking the driveway. The manager was informed that we would be
speaking to the owner to discuss all of the issues raised in the meeting. We
asked the manager to let us know how the following weekend went and if
there were any issues. We now know that there some serious problems over
that weekend.

The investigating officer called the owner and discussed all of the issues that
were raised. The owner made constant reassurances that there would not be
any issues and that they would be on top of it. The manager claimed that they
had spent £2-3,000 on sound proofing in the function room within the last
3weeks. The officer said they would be in contact to arrange a time to visit the
restaurant to look at these measures put in place.

Page 125



AL

Concerns of the Pollution Team

The pollution team as a responsible authority take the view that this premises
will continue to cause a public nuisance and affect local residents. We
received many complaints of loud music and excessive noise and behaviour
of patrons leaving the venue. We have given the licensee more than enough
opportunity to control the noise at the venue and take a responsibility for
patrons. The assurances from the licensee to control the noise from the venue
have proven inadequate as we are still receiving more complaints from
residents living within close proximity to the venue.

We have also seen an escalation in the severity of incidents too. | ask the
committee to consider the complaints and the problems that this venue is
causing on a regular basis under the public nuisance objective.

Completed by: Joe Mesure
Position: Poliution Enforcement Officer
Date: 14 July 2022

Page 126



AL

To whom it may concern

I am writing to make a representation under the Licensing Act 2003 regarding the license
review of Aachis Masala Chennai, 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon CR2 6EA.

Background (pre-pandemic)

| purchased and moved into Ateees ; - a8t i ENesreapRiRER. \Vy living
room window looks out over Brlghton Road in both directions. My bedroom window is large

and wide (the width of the entire wall), and facing ¢uBuEtes® the premises under review. |
had no problems for the first 9 months living here.

In the summer of 2019, | began to notice a series of loud parties nearby. At first the music
wasn't intrusive, but when the parties finished there was significant noise on the street as
the patrons left, usually at around 4am. On one occasion, the patrons refused to end the
party, parked their cars across the width of the road, and played music, with dancing
happening between two lines of cars. This caused significant disruption as, in addition to the
music, buses and other vehicles honked their horns while attempting to pass.

The music from these parties proceeded to increase in volume over the next 12 months,
particularly on hot evenings, to the point where it significantly disrupted my sleep. At the
time, these parties were happening once every 2-3 weeks, with several parties during a
bank holiday weekend, or on special occasions such as the finals weekend of Wimbledon.

I started to complain to the council's noise pollution department during this time. At first |
called the noise control service, but the people throwing the parties figured out that the
noise control officers stopped working at 2am, and started to turn the music up at 2:01am.
Because of the direction my window faces, | was kept awake by the quieter music, but it
couldn't be heard from the street, so there was little that could be done. | have since
learned that there is a side door in the premises, intended for use as an emergency exit,
which smokers were leaving open to go outside for a cigarette. This is why the music was
targeted directly at my window, and couldn't be heard from the street.

The council was limited in what it could do at the time. They asked me to keep them
informed, and let me know the options, but as the premises was licensed to hold late
parties up to 12 times per year, they were within their rights. | understand they also visited
the premises, but couldn't determine the source of any excessive noise. | have since learned
that sound equipment is brought in by the hiree for each party.

I began to look into the option to review their licence, but as all venues were closed from
March 2020 this ceased to be an issue. A very peaceful year followed. As awfu!l as the
pandemic was, this was one silver lining.

I now know that the current owner bought the premises immediately prior to the pandemic,
and changed the name from Aachis Masala to Chennai Dosa. He made this purchase at an
unfortunate time, but on the condition that the licence allowed him to host late night
functions.

Page 127



Al

Background (post-pandemic)

After the pandemic restrictions on venues were lifted, the parties restarted. At first these
were only on Sundays, but were louder than they had been previously. | restarted my
complaints to the noise pollution team, and they sent a letter to the owner. This resulted in
two things - the parties switched to Fridays (which is more reasonable) and the owner
passed on his direct number, so | could call him if there was a problem.

The parties then increased in regularity, first adding Sundays again, then Tuesdays, and
sometimes Wednesdays or Thursdays. By March 2022 they were taking place at least 4
times per week, sometimes up to 7. | was calling the owner at least twice a week. Most of
the time he answered, but it was clear there was little he could do beyond asking the hirees
to close the emergency exit door. He didn't have the skills or resources to enforce any noise
reducing measures, or even to keep the offending door closed (it would often open again
minutes after being closed). Noise control officers were no longer carrying out night shifts
(the most crucial time for them to be working) so the loud music started from midnight or
earlier.

The volume also increased significantly. On one Sunday it was so bad that the windows in
my bedroom were shaking. When | called the next day, the owner said he had expressed
concern at the size of the amps that were being brought in, but couldn't (or wouldn't) do
anything about it. He made several comments about the race of the hirees, saying "you
know what they are like", as if | shared his views, which made me uncomfortable. The
parties would generally finish by 2:30am, but at least once a week they would carry on until
4am.

I met with the owner, who gave me a bottle of wine by way of apology and made the offer
of a free dinner in the restaurant. He told me he was going to install soundproofing and,
while this has started to make a difference, | understand it has not yet been finished and has
minimal impact on the louder amplified music. Eventually he agreed to give notice to the
Sunday parties and, while this is a good start, it was 4 weeks notice and didn't address the
other midweek parties. | started looking into the process for a licence review again, and
requested a copy of the current licence.

Most Recent Issues

At 3:30am on Sunday 3 July, | was woken up by very loud music. | called the owner at 4am
and he didn't answer. | tried calling again at 4:30am. This time he answered, and explained
to me that it was not at his premises. He said that an unknown group had broken into the
premises next door and were holding a rave in the courtyard. He said he had been alerted to
it by the arrival of an unmarked white van earlier in the evening, and had decided to close
his own premises early as a result. | can't be sure, but | remember seeing that van earlier
and thought it was the same van | had seen unloading sound equipment into his premises in
previous weeks. | don't know that was definitely the case, though. The party eventually
disbanded at 5:30am, causing a significant amount of noise and disruption.

Page 128



Al

That day I noticed a police car attending the scene of the rave. Later that evening, the gate
had been closed with police tape and a camera had been installed. | ran into the owner in
the Tesco daia®my flat and he reminded me that the following week was the final Sunday
party, and promised that all parties would stop at 2:30am at the latest.

At 2:30 am on Monday 4 July | heard the music {which had been quite loud for a few hours)
finally stop. Very soon afterwards | heard screaming and yelling, both in the street and what
| think was from inside the venue. | was considering whether to call the police, when | heard
a police siren approaching. Watching out the window, | saw the police car arrive, an officer
got out, took a look at the entrance to the venue, got something out of his car boot, and
strode in. Over the next hour or so, many more police vehicles arrived. At one point |
counted 11 police vehicles and an ambulance.

For most of the next day, a police car was parked outside the entrance of the venue. | was in
meetings for most of the day and was going to go down and give them this background and
information after my last meeting, but they left as | was putting my shoes on.

There have been no parties since. It's been a peaceful week. The lack of sleep was having an
impact on my work and personal life, and | was constantly tired. A week of quiet nights has
improved that situation significantly.

Licensing Objectives

I believe the above information primarily addresses the licensing objective of the prevention
of public nuisance. | am aware that | am not the only person to have complained about this,
although I am one of few directly affected by the music due to the positioning of my
window in relation to the emergency door at the premises. The extreme levels of noise for
the majority of the night, 4-7 nights per week is a pattern that cannot continue. This,
combined with the noise and behaviour of patrons as they leave the venue, and their habit
of parking cars along the entire length of the street, is an undeniable nuisance that
shouldn't be allowed to continue.

In addition to this, there are public safety and criminal concerns, but these have not directly
affected me. | believe information regarding these should be provided by the police, and |
understand this process is underway.

Current Licence

I believe there are several issues with the current licence that are exacerbating the situation
outlined above. The venue is a restaurant in an area that contains many residential
dwellings. This licence, which | understand has been in place for over 30 years without
review, reads as if it is for a nightclub in an industrial area.

The licence currently covers parties until 2am, 7 days per week, with a closing time of 2:30.
Putting aside the fact that this is not being followed (with music playing until at least 2:30),
this is inappropriate. The regular parties on Sunday and Tuesday nights are an extreme
nuisance, given that the majority of the population is required to be at work on weekday

Page 129



Al

mornings. As mentioned above, this has had an impact on the quality of my work on more
than one occasion.

The licence also makes no reference to noise level. As mentioned previously, the council's
noise control team is limited in its ability to address these concerns, and | cannot imagine
the licence envisaged the extreme sound equipment being used when it was first issued.

There is an exception for pre-planned events with pre-invited guests, where they are
allowed to carry on indefinitely. This is impractical, as there is no way to prove that guests
were pre-invited, particularly given that most invitations can be distributed via the
WhatsApp groups of the event promotors, making anyone a pre-invited guest.

Finally, the 12 events per year that can go on for an extended period of time are frustrating
as they can happen unexpectedly. If they must stay in place, there should be a requirement
to notify neighbours of this in advance.

| don't believe that the owner has any ill-intentions in holding these parties, and has
occasionally accommodated my feedback, but as they have become a central feature of his
business model he is unlikely to rectify the situation without a change to his licence.

Conclusion

The current situation at the premises under review should not and cannot be allowed to
continue. The venue is primarily a restaurant, and should be treated as such. In line with the
licences held by the majority of restaurants in the area, an end time of 11pm should apply,
with exceptions for private functions (not promotor-led events) that are limited to
weekends, end by 2am, and are required to adhere to local noise regulations. By no means
should promotor-led events be allowed in the premises.

The conclusion above is reasonable and measured, and in line with precedent. | have been
as tolerant as | can over the past 3.5 years, but the constant throb of bass music untif the
small hours of 4-7 mornings per week, with the only solution being to call the owner in the
hope that he has the will and ability to do something about it, is something that no one
should have to go through. It has seriously impacted my work, my personal life, and my right
to the quiet enjoyment of my own home, and that | appreciate the opportunity to have that
taken under consideration in this review.

Please feel free to contact me if | can provide any further detail or information. | can be
reached at this email address, or at (S ERSASASE

Best wishes

e

Page 130



19 to .26

J1to 18
I|,\__ 5 0 '\0
Y ameCr ElIr} M
meters ( & London Borough of Croydon
fLicence Mo. 100019257} 20132
CROYDON Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey (License No: 100019257) 2011
www.croydon.gov.uk London Borough Croydon
SealeYi1250 X = 2 Ro14aHTOry AN

Pag#81812022



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application for a premises licence at 21-22 Central Parade, New Addington, CRO 0JB
	SCR21-22CentralParadeAppA
	NEED and CUMULATIVE IMPACT
	5.4	Prevention of Public Nuisance
	LICENSING HOURS


	SCR21-22CentralParadeAppxA1-A4

	6 LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application for a review of the premises licence at 3 Brighton Road, South Croydon, CR2 6EA
	SCR3BrightonRoadReviewHearingAppAUpd
	NEED and CUMULATIVE IMPACT
	5.4	Prevention of Public Nuisance
	LICENSING HOURS


	SCR3BrightonRoadReviewHearingAppxA1-A7


